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Corporate Information

REEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman)

Mr. Sun Zhihua (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lu Jianguo (resigned with effect on 25 August 2023)

Mr. Yang Guang (Chief Executive Officer)

(newly appointed with effect on 25 August 2023)
Mr. Ding Lei (newly appointed with effect on 25 August 2023)

Ms. Xu Jianying

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liang Xinjun

Mr. Chung Chong Sun

Mr. Chiu Ngam

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yeung Man, Simon

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Sun Zhihua
Mr. Yeung Man, Simon

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chung Chong Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Liang Xinjun

Mr. Chiu Ngam

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liang Xinjun (Chairman)

Mr. Sun Zhihua

Ms. Xu Jianying

Mr. Chung Chong Sun

Mr. Chiu Ngam

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman)

Mr. Liang Xinjun

Mr. Chung Chong Sun

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN THE PRC
Room 527, 5th Floor

Building 6, Xinhang Business Center
Xihu, Hangzhou

Zhejiang Province

the PRC
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Corporate Information (Continued)

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4009, 40/F

China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
2271

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.zazhsh.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Xiaoshan Rural Commercial Bank
Agricultural Bank of China

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAWS
Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207

32/F., Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Rainbow Capital (HK) Limited
Office No. 710, 7/F,

Wing On House,

71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong
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Definitions

E&

“2022 Same Period”
F20224F A HA)

“Annual General Meeting”
MERBFARE]

“Articles of Association”
A =24

“associate”
i YN

“Auditor”
2 & lill

“Audit Committee”
EZEEE)

“Board”
lEE5g)

“Board Committees”

“CG Code”
Mb2EEASTE]

“Chief Executive Officer”
MTEAEEL

“CIA”
esEE (o

“CNC”
e [ 4k 7

“Company” or “our Company “

/NN
“Director(s)”
rE=)

“Global Offering”
2EREE)

“Group”
=Sy ETY

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

the year ended 31 December 2022

B E2022F12H31H L FE

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,

6 June 2024

Rt20245F686H (BHM) RTNEERRBEARS

the articles of association of the Company

KATEBERRAL

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BA(ETRA) BT ZANRE

Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company
P/NETE R S Tk S T S

the audit committee of the Company

KAREBIZEESR

the board of Directors of the Company

KRBEFE

collectively, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the

Nomination Committee

ERZEE HFNEEERRELEETHMRTE

the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

(EMARA) WERCIPrEi R E ER TR

the chief executive officer of the Company

RRETEABH

the China Index Academy
FREIHEERBA TPt

China New City Commercial Development Limited

PEMETEEERARAE

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited (R ZEEEEZRSERAT),

an

exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
16 November 2020, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange (stock code: 2271)

REBELERSABRAT —RIN2020F11B16BEHEH S M IsIE

HeAREERR ERHON

the director(s) of the Company

KTRBEF

44 X

Y 2K

FrEtr £ BRMHARSE : 2271)

the initial public offering of the Company

KRB ERAREE

the Company and all of its subsidiaries

KRB RHEEELHE AR

2023 Annual Report
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“HKICPA”
rEREMAE)

“Hong Kong”
&4

“Ideal World”
l'ldeal World |

“IFRSs”
MBI PR R B3 5 22 1

“Listing Date”
r = BHA)

“Listing Rules’
FERA

“Model Code”
F{RRAE<F R ).

“Mr. Shi”
Biibes

q

“Nomination Committee’
NEw&EE)

“Over-allotment Option”
NEBREAC A

“PRC”
MR

“Prospectus”
B ERBAE

“Remaining Group”
Mk N EEE)

“Remuneration Committee”
IFNEZE )

“Reporting Period”
TR & HRRE

“‘RMB”
TAR®)

“SEO”

ez RHAE R )

Definitions (Continued)

Ex (8

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEREEEBET

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BEHEGSEAY

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FREEBRFIITHRE

Ideal World Investments Limited
Ideal World Investments Limited

the International Financial Reporting Standards
B PR B 75 3 5 2E R

18 July 2023
2023F7H18H

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Az PrEE s E AR A

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(LHETAEZIETIRESFXZHNRETA)

Mr. Shi Zhongan (alias Shi Kancheng)
M2 (AT AR)

the nomination committee of the Company
EN/NSIE e =

the over-allotment option as described in the Prospectus
B ER BAE PR i AV EB BB T AR 1

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
REARENE iAREMS > AEEEE - PERFISHIITHR KRG E

the prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2023
RRF2023F6 5308 B IRRIAE

CNC, together with Zhong An Group
FEMIE T ER R ER

the remuneration committee of the Company
KRBFHNEES

the year ended 31 December 2023
#E2023F12831HIEFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
RENEE G AR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEER BN E (RS RAEMRG) » KRREHMEST ~ F R s U = A 75 EDL

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR



Definitions (Continued)

EE (@)

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company

TR 15 B ARIBRAPEREEOIEITZ BIBER

“Shareholder(s)” shareholders of the Company

A& =, B ARERE

“Stock Exchange” the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

T 22 P 5 BEHAXRZMERAE

“subsidiary(ies)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

IF 8 A 51l 1 BA(EWRAD B TZANRE

“substantial shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

PNl 1 BA(LEWRADEFZANRE

“Whole Good” Whole Good Management Limited

r247] 15 Z2FEEARAR

“Zhong An” Zhong An Group Limited

MRZ B RLERBRRF

“Zhong An BVI” Zhong An Service Holding Limited

MR ZBVI B RERBERERAT

“Zhong An Group” Zhong An and its subsidiaries

IR EE) B RERENBAF

6 Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report



Financial Highlights

M5 E

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31HLLEE
2023 2022 Changes
—EC=F - —— EE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARBFT ANEEFT
Revenue A 351,133 319,735 +9.82%
Gross profit EH] 118,814 116,338 +2.13%
Profit for the year REE A 49,424 50,935 -2.97%
Profit attributable to owners ISYNEIEZ 2PN/ it
of the parent 49,346 50,817 -2.89%
Earnings per share attributable to BEREEERFEEA
ordinary equity holders of the parent LSRR
- Basic and diluted —EXKEE RMB11.2 RMB13.4
cents cents
AR¥11.23 AR¥1345
As at 31 December
12H31H
2023 2022 Changes
—EBC=HF TECCF BE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARBBFT ANEETFT
Total assets BEE 410,085 198,032 +107.08%
Net assets FEE 274,756 93,266 +194.59%
Net assets value per share BREEFE RMBO0.53 not applicable N/A
AEK#0.537T TEA NEF
REEBEERSBRAT ZTT=FFR
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited and its subsidiaries,
| am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Since the listing of Zhong An in November 2007 on the Stock Exchange, the
Company is the second subsidiary of Zhong An to be successfully listed on
the Stock Exchange through the spin-off. The first subsidiary of Zhong An to
be successfully listed on the Stock Exchange by way of spin-off was CNC.
The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
since 18 July 2023. Zhong An and its subsidiaries have thus become a
large-scale enterprise group with listed companies in real estate, commercial
and property sectors in Zhejiang Province, China.

In 2023, the Group’s revenue was approximately RMB351.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.8% as compared with
approximately RMB319.7 million in the same period in 2022. As of 31
December 2023, the Group had 18 new projects under management,
representing an increase of approximately 19.0%, and an additional area
under management of approximately 3.6 million sq. m., representing an
increase of approximately 28.1%.

As a comprehensive property service provider with deep roots in the Yangtze
River Delta, the Group has been focusing on customer satisfaction for
many years. It is committed to understanding customer needs, striving for
excellence in services, and building a comprehensive service system under
the “Zhong An Intelligent” brand. In the past year, while strengthening basic
services, the Group has continued to expand its chain and business to
provide many value-added services such as housekeeping and cleaning. It
has continuously won the trust of customers with its high-quality services,
and its area under management, expansion volume, revenue, and cash flow
have all increased to a certain extent.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report
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2023 A ERBANAREBISTIEETH
FE2022F FHIM AR IE319. 7B B TIE B4
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group has always adhered to “providing
better services to homeowners” as the Group’s business goal. The
Group has improved and optimized the product line system and
operation management system, and promoted management and service
standardization. The Group has launched new special actions such as
“Listening Action”, “Quality Supervision Officer” and “General Manager
Reception Day”, aiming to empower the front line through management,
better understand the actual needs of customers, accurately improve the
service quality of each project, and bring a better living environment to
customers. At the same time, the Group has combined internal satisfaction
surveys and CIA satisfaction surveys to regularly conduct satisfaction
surveys. In the 2023 annual satisfaction survey, the customer satisfaction
score was 79 points. Through precise control of corporate development
of the Company’s senior management and the efforts of all the Company’s
employees, the Group was ranked 40th in the ranking of the Top 100
in Property Industry in 2023. At the same time, the Company won the
“Leading Enterprise in East China Regional Service Market in 2023”,
“Potential Unicorns of China’s Property Service Companies in 2023”,
“Socially Responsible Enterprises of the Year in China’s Property Services
in 2023", “Excellent Enterprises in China’s Specialized Property Services
in 2023”, “Advanced Enterprises in China’s Specialized Property Services
in 2023”, “China’s Specialized Property Service Strong Service Enterprise
in 2023” and “China’s Specialized Property Service Safety Demonstration
Unit in 2023” and so on. Also, many projects were granted “municipal-level
excellent communities”, “municipal/district-level beautiful homes”, “provincial/
municipal/district-level red properties”, “provincial-level waste classification
demonstration communities” and “clean and beautiful communities”, etc. In
the meantime, as the scale of the new community value-added business has
continued to grow steadily, the Group continued to be ranked among the
“China’s Top 100 Property Management Service Providers”, and has been
shortlisted for the TOP list by many authoritative organizations.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all Shareholders, investors, customers and suppliers,
and to all employees for their contribution and hard work, and we will
wholeheartedly create the greatest value and achieve the best returns for
Shareholders and investors.

Shi Zhongan
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 26 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEwED

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since the listing of Zhong An in November 2007 on the Stock Exchange, the
Company is the second subsidiary of Zhong An to be successfully listed on
the Stock Exchange through the spin-off. The first subsidiary of Zhong An
successfully listed on the Stock Exchange by way of spin-off was CNC. The
Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 18
July 2023.

The Group is a reputable integrated property management service provider
headquartered in Hangzhou with deep roots in Zhejiang province and the
Yangtze River Delta Region. Through over 25 years of operations since
our establishment in 1998, the Group has grown from a local property
management service provider in Hangzhou to an integrated regional property
management service provider with a major presence in Zhejiang province.

According to CIA, the Group’s market share in the PRC in terms of GFA
under management as of 31 December 2022 was approximately 0.04%, the
Group has been included in the list of the Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China (FFEI¥) % AR F5 B 58 12 %) since 2016 and our ranking
among the Top 100 Property Management Companies in China in terms of
overall strength of property management rose from 82nd in 2016 to 40th in
2023, reflecting the Group’s growing property management capabilities. In
addition, as of 31 December 2022, the Group was ranked seventh, ninth and
25th, among the 2023 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China
headquartered in Hangzhou, Zhejiang province and the Yangtze River Delta
Region, respectively, in terms of the GFA under management.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 138 contracted projects
with a contracted area of approximately 20.80 million sg.m., covering 19
cities and seven provinces in China. As of 31 December 2023, the Group
had 113 projects under management, with area under management of
approximately 16.43 million sg.m., covering 12 cities and three provinces in
China.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The following table sets forth the revenue from property management
services and GFA under management by types of property for the years
indicated:

EEEwmE DT (&)

TREVBEMTEERYERRE DM
MEBERFBARTEREER :

For the Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLEE
2023 2022
2023 2022
Number of  GFA under Number of ~ GFA under
projects management Revenue Percentage projects  management Revenue  Percentage
B TEREER WA f5LE HE TERERE N fhLt
(sq.m’000)  (RMB’000) (%) (sq.m’000)  (RMB'000) (%)
(FFEHR) ABEFT) (FEER) AEEFT)
Residential properties (X E#% 87 13,864 182,859 70.0% 70 11,283 163,468 73.1%
Non-residential FEENE
properties 26 2,563 78,341 30.0% 25 1,549 60,125 26.9%
Total 4ot 113 16,427 261,200 100.0% 9 12,832 223,593 100.0%

Benefitting from the Long-term Support of the
Remaining Group whilst Expanding Our Business to
Independent Third-Party Customers

Zhong An is one of the leading real estate developers in the Yangtze River
Delta Region, together with the Remaining Group is a major commercial
property developer in the Yangtze River Delta Region and their development
projects include residential properties, commercial complexes, hotels and
other properties. According to CIA, in terms of overall strength, Zhong
An ranked 64th among the 2023 Top 100 Real Estate Companies in
China (2023 B E#hE B8 1) . As of 31 December 2023, to the best
knowledge of the Group after consulting the Remaining Group, it had about
34 property projects under development or held for development in the
PRC, with a total GFA of approximately 6.6 million sg.m. Among the projects
mentioned above, the Group has obtained service agreements in respect of
23 property projects with a total GFA of approximately 3.7 million sg.m. as of
31 December 2023.

RERF TEBNRSE [
R EFANEHEEREAERIL
HABEE R

BER/RI=ZAMNMER BT EMER
@z — ERFTEERARI=ZANE
TENBERMERER HREERAE
EEVE -BREEEE BASERAEMYE-
RERIERZER SUREGENIME  RE
1220231 B f= 3 2 5 s (b 2R P 44 51 56441 ©
B ZE2023F 128310 7EHEAHAG T EE
BPERN > HpS R Bl A KI34E & ey
FRZENYERR BEREERAIR6.68
BF¥HD K- ELMIBEEMES » #E20235F12
B3R AEECHMBEREERROR3TE
B ¥ RBI23EY EFRES RBWE

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR

1



12

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwA D (&)

Diversified Service Offerings and Revenue
Streams Balanced our Business Development and
Significantly Improved our Profit Level

Over the course of the Group’s development, in addition to the efforts in
managing residential property projects, we also focused on non-residential
property projects comprising primarily commercial and office buildings,
serviced apartments, industrial parks, public and other properties (such as
office buildings of PRC governmental bodies, industrial parks, hospitals,
schools and parks). The management of the Group believes that the
development of our non-residential property projects portfolio would enable
the Group to provide more personalized and professional service offerings
and enhance its service standards, which would in turn allow the Group to
provide our customers with better quality services and elevate the Group’s
brand reputation and image.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has always adhered to “providing
better services to homeowners” as the Group’s business goal. We have
improved and optimized the product line system and operation management
system, and promoted management and service standardization. We
have launched new special actions such as “Listening Action”, “Quality
Supervision Officer” and “General Manager Reception Day”, aiming to
empower the front line through management, better understand the actual
needs of customers, accurately improve the service quality of each project,
and bring a better living environment to customers. At the same time, we
have combined internal satisfaction surveys and CIA satisfaction surveys to
regularly conduct satisfaction surveys. In the 2023 annual satisfaction survey,
the customer satisfaction score was 79 points. Through precise control
of corporate development of the Company’s senior management and the
efforts of all the Company’s employees, we were ranked 40th in the ranking
of the Top 100 in Property Industry in 2023. At the same time, the Company
won the “Leading Enterprise in East China Regional Service Market in
2023”, “Potential Unicorns of China’s Property Service Companies in 2023”,
“Socially Responsible Enterprises of the Year in China’s Property Services
in 2023”, “Excellent Enterprises in China’s Specialized Property Services
in 2023”, “Advanced Enterprises in China’s Specialized Property Services
in 2023”, “China’s Specialized Property Service Strong Service Enterprise
in 2023” and “China’s Specialized Property Service Safety Demonstration
Unit in 2023” and so on. Also, many projects were granted “municipal-level
excellent communities”, “municipal/district-level beautiful homes”, “provincial/
municipal/district-level red properties”, “provincial-level waste classification
demonstration communities” and “clean and beautiful communities”, etc.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In terms of smart services, the Group has systematically promoted
smart systems and artificial intelligence robots for existing projects under
management in 2023, and they have been put into use in multiple projects.
At the same time, in order to cater to the needs of homeowners more
accurately, on the value-added service side, we have launched housekeeping
services and car washing services to make the lives of homeowners more
convenient and efficient. The Group has also continued to explore and
study business development in multiple new areas, and formulated multiple
new business tracks based on the business needs and the Company’s
development direction, which will be gradually implemented in future
development. The Group endeavored to understand the needs of our
customers, refine our services and build an all-rounded service system under
the “Zhong An Intelligent Living” brand.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB351.1 million (2022: RMB319.7 million), representing an increase of
9.8% as compared with the 2022 Same Period. The Group’s revenue was
derived from three major business lines: (i) property management services;
(i) value-added services mainly to property developers; and (i) community
value-added services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by business line
for the years indicated, both in absolute amount and as a percentage of total
revenue:

EEEwmE DT (&)

EERERB L AE@EIN2023FEHIT
FEEEERARARTHESERSLERRR
ATBEZHEAN BRI EEZEERRAML
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BYETHE-AEBRRNTHERNE
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RAREHRR  ZEEBRBRAHARE
351. 1B 8T (2022F : ARHES19.76E
7T) » BX20224F R HA1E N9.8% o A< & [ 1Y Uk
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For the Year ended 31 December

HE12B31BLEE
2023 2022
20235 20226
(RMB in thousands, except for percentages)
ANB¥F B EESN)

Property management services VX EERF 261,200 74.4% 223,593 69.9%
Value-added services mainly to TEmMEEMERZEEN

property developers BERD 58,069 16.5% 60,729 19.0%

Community value-added services 1 1& 1% & BR 7S 31,864 9.1% 35,413 11.1%

351,133 100.0% 319,735 100.0%

REEBEERSBRAT ZTT=FFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwA D (&)

Property Management Services

During the Reporting Period, revenue from property management services
amounted to approximately RMB261.2 million, representing an increase
of 16.8% as compared with approximately RMB223.6 million in the 2022
Same Period. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total GFA under
management of approximately 16.4 million sq.m., representing an increase
of approximately 3.6 million sgq.m. or 28.1% as compared with approximately
12.8 million sg.m. in the 2022 Same Period. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in projects delivered by independent third-party
property developers, as well as the increase in business with Remaining
Group.

A majority of our revenue from property management services is generated
from services provided to properties developed by Remaining Group. As of
31 December 2023, we had 53 properties (2022: 41 properties) developed
by Remaining Group under our management, with a total GFA under the
management of approximately 8.0 million sg.m. (2022: 6.8 million sg.m.).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of revenue from property
management services and GFA under our management by type of property
developers for the years indicated:

Y% EIE IR

RABEHBE WEEBRBWRALEA
R261.28 8 T B2022F RN ARTE
223.6E & T N16.8% © j132023F 125 31
H AEETEAREEEBENI64EETH
K B2022FE FEEIA12.8 7 & F 75 KLY
3OEBF ALK BRER281% ZIERE
EORRERNBIS - AEMEMREERN
BEE 2N U KRR T EBAERIEM -

EMMESTERBFHABIWATLEER
BER NEBFTMEENYERENRE -BE
2023%F12H31 8 » FMHE531E (20224 : 41
@) EEMXEEHG TEEMBE T8
HREBMBANAS.0E BT H K (20224F ¢
6.8BEFHK) °

TREIFFTEEREMEMEHELE
DREMEEERBHIVARTERZRE
TEFRAE -

For the Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLEE
2023 2022
2023 2022
Number  GFA under Number ~ GFA under
of projects management Revenue Percentage  of projects management Revenue  Percentage
3 g
B BEER WA 1tk HE  EEEB N fhtt
(sq.m’000)  (RMB’000) (sq.m’000)  (RMB'000)
(FFER) ABEFT) (FEER) AEEFT)
Remaining Group” ~ ER FEE 53 8,005 168,851 64.6% 41 6,835 159,917 715%
Joint ventures and BFTEEN
associates of the RELER
Remaining Group? NI 6 881 6,315 2.5% 1 0 - -
Independent third-party B E =74
property developers®  Ei#iE
HEEY 54 7,541 86,034 32.9% 53 5,907 63,676 28.5%
Total 15t 113 16,427 261,200 100.0% 95 12,832 223,593 100.0%
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Notes:

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

1) Refer to properties solely developed by the Remaining Group or jointly
developed by the Remaining Group and independent third-party property
developers where the Remaining Group held a controlling interest in such

properties.

@ Refer to properties jointly developed by the Remaining Group and independent
third-party property developers where the Remaining Group did not hold a
controlling interest in such properties.

3) Refer to properties solely developed by independent third-party property

developers.

Our Geographical Presence

The Yangtze River Delta Region is one of the more economically developed
regions in China. Its urbanization rate and per capita annual disposable
income are higher than the national averages and it has a national-leading
level of urban digitalization infrastructure. Therefore, the Yangtze River Delta
Region has always been and will continue to be our focus of development.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total GFA under
management by region for the periods indicated:

EEEwmE DT (&)

mizE -

(1) EHRTEEREBRSNGTERREBIS
—HEHEMEHLRMENYE MR
TEESAZSEMENZRER -

@ EERTEERBUYS=HRMEREHHL
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For the Year ended 31 December

HE12B31ALLEE

2023
2023F
Number of GFA under

2022
20224
Number of GFA under

projects management Percentage projects  management Percentage
¥E TEEEER f&EE HE TEEEER 5 EE
(sq.m’000) (sq.m’000)
(FFHHK) (FF5K)
Second-tier cities 4R 0 68 10,015 61.0% 64 8,363 65.2%
Third-tier cities” = &R0 5 817 5.0% 2 585 4.6%
Other cities!! HAthpg e 40 5,595 34.0% 29 3,884 30.2%
Total Mzt 113 16,427 100.0% 95 12,832 100.0%
Note: Yoz
(1) For the purpose of this table, “second-tier cities” include Hangzhou, Ningbo, (N USRS > TR BEMN - 2

Hefei and Qingdao; “third-tier cities” include Jinhua and Wenzhou; and “other
cities” include Lishui, Huzhou, Chuzhou, Huaibei, Taizhou and Zhoushan.

BERERES; =8B 8ETERR
M5 Fe TELAt I T s EL4ERE 7K ~ AN ~ RN ~
L~ BINE AL

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Portfolio of Properties under Management

While the majority of properties under our management are primarily
attributable to residential properties, we continuously sought to provide
property management services to non-residential properties in the Reporting
Period. The non-residential properties under our management are diverse,
including commercial and office buildings, serviced apartments, and public
and other properties (such as office buildings of PRC governmental bodies,
industrial parks, hospitals, schools, and museums). We believe that by
accumulating our experience and recognition for the quality of our property
management services to both residential and non-residential properties,
we will be able to continue to diversify our portfolio of properties under
management and further enlarge our customer base.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue from property
management services and GFA under management by types of property for
the years indicated:

TEMEES

BERMETENMEABOREEEYE
RUEARSHBNTEHIRAIFEEY
EIRMEYEEERT - RAOTERNIFEEY
XFEEE OEBERTFREFE RF
NAB RHEREAMYPE (U0 E BT 1%
ma - TEER B BRRIEYE) -
RPEE BRERMAEAEERIFEEYE
RUBEVEEERTRBERNERRE
B RMREEES TEEEYEAARE
—TBEARMNERE

TREIBEFMTEERMEREE DN
MEBERFBWAKRTEREERAM

For the Year ended 31 December

HE12A1HLEE
2023 2022
20235 20226
Number of  GFA under Number of ~ GFA under
projects management Revenue Percentage projects  management Revenue  Percentage
3 TE
B BREER KA 1L B EEER WA 1Lt
(sq.m’000)  (RMB’000) (%) (sq.m’000)  (RMB'000) (%)
(FERA) (AE#EFT) (FEFR) NEETFT)
Residential properties ~ + E¥% 87 13,864 182,859 70.0% 70 11,283 163,468 73.1%
Non-residential FEEME
properties 26 2,563 78,341 30.0% 25 1,549 60,125 26.9%
Total 485t 113 16,427 261,200 100.0% 9% 12,832 223,593 100.0%

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report



Management Discussion

Value-added Services Mainly to Property Developers

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue of the value-added
services mainly to property developers for the periods indicated, both in
absolute amount and as a percentage of total revenue:

and Analysis (Continued)

EEEwmE DT (&)

%Eﬁﬁ%iﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂiﬁﬂﬁ

TREFIFATHEEIEZEEREERED
BYIE E AR5 RI WL A BRAR (MUABH R e 1 48
WABB AT :

For the Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31ALEE
2023 2022
20235 2022%F
(RMB in thousands, except for percentages)
(ANBHEFr B HERSN)

Sales office management HEMEEREE

services AR 7% 44,404 76.5% 55,046 90.6%
Preliminary planning and FIEEPEE NG

design consultancy services BEAARTE 5,723 9.9% 4,546 7.5%

Pre-delivery inspection services 3 {1 A8 & ARFS 7,942 13.6% 1,137 1.9%

58,069 100.0% 60,729 100.0%

We provide a range of value-added services mainly to property developers
covering different stages of property development projects, which primarily
comprise (i) sales office management services mainly including the provision
of management services at property sales venues and display units of
property developers, (i) preliminary planning and design consultancy services
to property developers and (iii) pre-delivery inspection services.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from value-added services mainly
to property developers, amounted to approximately RMB58.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB2.6 million or 4.3% as
compared with approximately RMB60.7 million in the 2022 Same Period.

The decrease was primarily attributable to the combined results of (i) an
increase in the pre-delivery inspection services of approximately RMB6.8
million and (i) a decrease in the provision of sales office management
services to the Remaining Group of approximately RMB10.6 million.

RMETEnEHEREBRE—RIRE
MERZBEEFERENIEERS 28
BOEENFREERS T2ERYE
HESMREHEREBRNEMARHEE
EARTS ; (i) f= 3 22 7R 3 r B (AT AR B
B EEHARTS 5 K(i) AT RIRE IR o

RARESHETETmQE N EREENG
ERFBFWALN AR KESS1H B 7T > 820224
BRI AREO7TEEBTALHOARE2.6
BETH4.3%°

BBV EZEHRUATEENGRSER
FREL ()RR ERFIE MO AR EEE.8R
B Rt T EERRHHENFERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwA D (&)

Community Value-added Services

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue of the community
value-added services for the periods indicated, both in absolute amount and
as a percentage of total revenue:

B ERTS

NERES PR EIE R R E AR U AR BRAR
CUBH SR REBIRABB ST ¢

For the Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31ALEE
2023 2022
20235 2022%F
(RMB in thousands, except for percentages)
(ANBHEFr B HERSN)
Common area management NHEHEE
services AR7 17,851 56.0% 11,095 31.3%
Renovation waste disposal HENEREY) R IE
services AR 2,546 8.0% 1,186 3.3%
Car parking space sales BEEEEAHEE
agency services RIERRTE 11,467 36.0% 23,132 65.4%
31,864 100.0% 35,413 100.0%

We mainly provide community value-added services principally to property
owners and residents of our managed properties, which primarily comprise
() common area management services where we assist property owners
to lease out common areas for advertisement placements and operation
or promotion of businesses which help facilitate the living convenience
of the community, (i) renovation waste disposal services where we assist
the property owners in disposing of the waste generated as a result of
the renovation work carried out in their units and (i) car parking space
sales agency services where we assist the Remaining Group to sell and
purchasers to purchase car parking spaces in certain property projects we
managed or under our management.

Revenue from community value-added services was approximately RMB31.9
million during the Reporting Period, a decrease of approximately RMB3.5
million or 9.9% compared with approximately RMB35.4 million in the 2022
Same Period.

The decrease was primarily attributable to the combined results of (i)
an increase of revenue in the common area management services of
approximately RMB6.8 million and (i) a decrease of revenue in the car
parking space sales agency services of approximately RMB11.6 million.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales primarily consists of () staff costs namely the costs of
our on-site staff directly providing property management services, value-
added services mainly to property developers and community value-added
services; (i) expenses for cleaning and gardening services including cleaning,
waste and sewerage charges; (i) expenses for maintenance services and
consumables including equipment repair expenses; and (iv) utilities expenses
including water and electricities charges, office supplies for property
management offices and communication charges.

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales was approximately
RMB232.3 million (2022: approximately RMB203.4 million), representing an
increase of 14.2% compared with the 2022 Same Period. The growth rate
of cost of sales was higher than that of revenue of 4.4 percentage points,
mainly attributable to the continuous increase in staff costs.

During the Reporting Period, staff costs included in the cost of sales were
approximately RMB198.6 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB45.4 million or 29.6% as compared with approximately RMB153.2
million in the 2022 Same Period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin by business segment for
the years indicated:

EEEwmE DT (&)

HE R
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For the Year ended 31 December

HE12A31HLEEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

Property management services YMEBIERTS 31.1% 33.2%
Value-added services mainly to property TEEREMERZEEN

developers W EAR S 41.5% 41.7%

Community value-added services & B ER 42.6% 47.4%

33.8% 36.4%

The gross profit of the Group was approximately RMB118.8 million for the
Reporting Period, representing a slight increase of approximately RMB2.5
million or 2.1% as compared with approximately RMB116.3 million in the
2022 Same Period.

NEBRARSHEBNENAOARKE
118.8E & 7t » B2022F [ HAXI A R #5116.3
BETEMENNOARE2.688 T
21%-°

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwA D (&)

The Group’s gross profit margin was affected by the combined gross
profit margin of the three segments of property management services,
community value-added services and value-added services mainly to
property developers. The gross profit margin decreased from 36.4% for the
2022 Same Period to 33.8% in the Reporting Period was primarily due to
the decreased gross profit margin on community value-added services and
property management services during the Reporting Period.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses reached approximately RMB49.5 million,
representing a slight increase of 4.0% from approximately RMB47.6 million
for the 2022 Same Period. The administrative expense ratio (administrative
expense divided by revenue) was 14.1%, representing a slight decrease of
0.8 percentage points compared to 14.9% in the 2022 Same Period. During
the Reporting Period, the Group upgraded the management system and
reinforced cost control.

Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group increased by 15.0% from
approximately RMB17.3 million for the 2022 Same Period to approximately
RMB19.9 million for the Reporting Period. The effective income tax rate was
28.7% (2022: 25.4%), representing an increase of 3.3 percentage points
compared to the 2022 Same Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit was approximately
RMB49.4 million for the Reporting Period, representing a slight decrease of
2.9% as compared with approximately RMB50.9 million for the 2022 Same
Period. The net profit margin was 14.1%, representing a decrease of 1.8
percentage points as compared to 15.9% for the 2022 Same Period.

The profit attributable to the owners of the parent decreased by
approximately 3% from approximately RMB50.8 million for the 2022 Same
Period to approximately RMB49.3 million for the Reporting Period. The basic
and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent were RMB11.2 cents per share (2022: RMB13.4 cents per share).

Trade receivables and prepayments, other
receivables and other assets

As of 31 December 2023, trade receivables and prepayments, other
receivables and other assets amounted to approximately RMB170.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 25.0% from approximately
RMB136.2 million as of 31 December 2022, which was primarily attributable
to an increase in the number of projects under management by the Group
and the general atmosphere of the domestic environment of the collection
rate became slower.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group pursues a prudent treasury management policy and actively
manages its liquidity position to cope with daily operations and any demands
for capital for future development. Also, the Group actively reviews and
manages its capital structure on a regular basis to maintain the advantages
and security of a strong capital position and adjust the capital structure in
response to changes in economic conditions.

The Group’s principal sources of liquidity come from the proceeds from
our business operations. Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are denominated in RMB, which amounted to approximately RMB177.3
million as of 31 December 2023, representing an increase of approximately
RMB132.6 million or 296.6% from RMB44.7 million as of 31 December
2022.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was 3.0 times (31 December 2022: 1.8 times).

As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any bank borrowings, and
the gearing ratio (total borrowings divided by total equity) was nil.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had a total of 2,696 (31 December 2022: 2,817) employees as at
31 December 2023. Total staff costs of the Group (excluding the Directors’
and chief executive officer’s remuneration) for the year ended 31 December
2023 was approximately RMB198.6 million (2022: RMB153.2 million). The
Group has adopted a system of determining employees’ remuneration based
on the performance of employees. The Group generally provides competitive
remuneration packages to employees, including basic salaries, performance-
based awards and year-end bonus. The Group also pays social security
insurance for its employees, including medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, endowment insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment
insurance and housing funds. In terms of employee training, the Group
provides continuous and systematic training to employees based on their
positions and expertise to enhance their expert knowledge in property
management and related fields.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Substantially all of the Group’s revenues and expenditures are denominated
in RMB. As of 31 December 2023, the Group has not entered into any
hedging transactions. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign exchange rates and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwA D (&)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had no capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2023, the Company, its subsidiaries, and its associates
did not have any financial guarantees, mortgage guarantees for loans, or
other significant contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any significant
investments and made no other material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group intends to utilise part of the net proceeds raised from the listing
to acquire or invest in other property management companies as part of our
strategies to expand our business scale and market share. As at the date
of this report, the Group did not have any other future plans for material
investments or acquisition of capital assets.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There were no important events affecting the Group which have occurred
since 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the competition in the property management industry will be
increasingly intense. The Group will adhere to its service tenet of “Pursuing
Excellent Quality, Creating Happy Life GER 2@ E > BIiEFE/ETS) 1 and
commit to providing quality services with the direction of “Sincere Services,
Standardized Management, Achievement of Excellence, and Be Proactive
and Innovative (AR¥S =3 > EIRFRE0 » i = KIE 7 EEAIHT) , as we believe
that service quality is the key to enhance our customer satisfaction and
strengthen a reputable brand recognition. In terms of scale development,
the Group will continue to maintain stable and quality growth in its future
development. The Company's development will focus on Zhejiang and
Anhui provinces as its deep development areas, deploy in the Yangtze River
Delta region, promote the development of multiple business formats, and
continuously increase market share. We will expand the ecological network
and open up the upstream and downstream industrial chains based on
the expansion of all-inclusive services (including security services, cleaning
services, maintenance of order, engineering maintenance and customer
services), and work with major customers, enterprises and street offices to
seek and achieve breakthroughs in business scale.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In addition, the Group will strive to develop and expand the non-residential
sector, enrich the Group's existing management project formats, and strive
to build an ecological service circle surrounding various sectors. In terms of
quality services, the Group, under the leadership of the management team,
has always adhered to "providing better services to homeowners" as the
Group's business goal. In the future management process, more attention
will be paid to and targeted at the individual needs of homeowners. We will
launch the "Get close to homeowners and listen to their voices" action, to
understand the needs of homeowners through multi-dimensional methods,
conduct refined management, and achieve co-governance of the community
with homeowners to create a warm and harmonious community. Through
external recruitment and internal training, we will continue to improve the
professionalism of personnel, continuously improve the internal service
system and product line system, and provide more outstanding and high-
quality services with higher-level personnel and a better service system to
ensure the satisfaction of homeowners.

In terms of smart services, the Group will increase its investment in smart
services and combine the new ecology of Internet + Internet of Things,
artificial intelligence and robot scenarios, introduce artificial intelligence
robots, smart security defense systems, parking gate systems, small
programs and property management platforms, etc., to provide homeowners
with a more convenient life and to improve the efficiency, accuracy and
service quality of park safety management and control. At the same time,
in order to cater to the needs of homeowners more accurately, the Group
will provide more accurate and timely services to homeowners through
systematic management, and continue to upgrade their happiness. Based
on consolidating the basic services of “1”, deepen and expand “9”, focusing
on “people”, “things”, “scenarios”, etc., the Group will integrate community
resources, carry out comprehensive layout, and vigorously develop
community life service facilities to create a reputable, high-quality and
sustainable multi-business and full-life service product platform, and increase
customer coverage and usage through high-quality products, high-quality
platforms and high-quality services.

In the meantime, Group will further expand and optimize our professional
development team, recruit outstanding professionals from benchmark
companies, participate in professional training specifically for the industry,
and raise the professional standards of the development team. The Group
will continue to build up brand reputation of the Company and leverage its
brand image, in order to establish extensive strategic cooperation with real
estate development companies and provide property management services
to their property projects. The Group will seek development opportunities
brought by the expansion of business coverage of Zhong An Group, actively
participate in bidding, expand management radius, and ensure stable growth
in scale.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwA D (&)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to implementing high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the Company
and enhance corporate value and commitment to responsibility. The
Company has adopted the CG Code as its corporate governance standards
and, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code during the Reporting
Period.

The Directors will use their best endeavors to ensure that the Company
continues to comply with the CG Code.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the meeting, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 3 June 2024 to 6
June 2024, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting, unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 31 May 2024.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend (subject to
approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting), the Register
of Members of the Company will be closed from 24 July 2024 to 26 July
2024, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, unregistered
holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 July 2024.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as its code for dealing in securities in the Company by
the Directors. The Directors have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS BY THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Board has established its Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules
and code provision D.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system of the Group, oversee the audit
process, provide advice and comments to the Board and perform other
duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, including three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liang Xinjun, Mr. Chung Chong Sun and
Mr. Chiu Ngam. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Chong Sun, an
independent non-executive Director who possesses appropriate professional
accounting and related financial management expertise.

Our Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and confirmed that
it has complied with all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. Our Audit Committee has also
discussed audit and financial reporting matters.

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and the related notes thereto for the year ended 31 December
2023 as set out in this annual report have been agreed by the Company’s
auditor, Ernst & Young, to the amounts set out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year. The work performed by Ernst & Young in
this respect did not constitute an assurance engagement in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review
Engagements or Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and consequently,
no assurance has been expressed by Ernst & Young on this annual report.

PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL REPORT ON THE
WEBSITES OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE AND THE
COMPANY

This annual report is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.zazhsh.com).
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRSE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the CG Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code. The
Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors its business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management of the
Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board Committees including the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations and act in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of legal

actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an
annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Zhihua (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Jianguo (resigned with effect on 25 August 2023)
Mr. Yang Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
(newly appointed with effect on 25 August 2023)
Mr. Ding Lei (newly appointed with effect on 25 August 2023)
Ms. Xu Jianying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liang Xinjun
Mr. Chung Chong Sun
Mr. Chiu Ngam

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has, at all times, met
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to appointing independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERKRS (B

The Company believes that the diversity of the Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to ensure
that the Company will, when determining the composition of the Board,
consider Board diversity in terms of, amongst other things, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All Board appointments will be based on merits and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of the
diversity of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board at least annually, taking into account the
benefits of all relevant diversity aspects and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the Company
targets to appoint a minimum of one Director of a different gender. Up to
the date of this Annual Report, the Board had one female Director. The
Board targets to maintain the current level of female representation, with
the minimum of one female member. As of 31 December 2023, 56.7% and
43.3% of the Group’s employees were male and female, respectively.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report, none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships) with any
other Director and chief executive of the Company.

As regards code provision C.1.5 of the CG Code, which requires each
director to disclose the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments, the
identity of the public companies or organizations and an indication of the
time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments and any subsequent changes to the Company in a timely
manner.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Directors keep abreast of the responsibilities as a Director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors have confirmed that
they had complied with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and details are
set out below:
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Types of Trainings
(See Remarks)

Directors = EagER) (REERR)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Shi Zhongan Mzt A B

Mr. Sun Zhihua BEERE A B

Mr. Lu Jianguo (resigned with effect EREfE A B
on 25 August 2023) (12202388250 ## 1)

Mr. Yang Guang (newly appointed with effect #5554 A B
on 25 August 2023) (722023F8 8 25H E#T)

Mr. Ding Lei (newly appointed with effect T&LE A B
on 25 August 2023) (722023F8 8 25H E#T)

Ms. Xu Jianying (Ey=tikogun A B

Independent Non-executive Directors B JEMITES

Mr. Liang Xinjun REERE A B

Mr. Chung Chong Sun AT E A B

Mr. Chiu Ngam e =pie A B

Remarks: 5

A attending seminars, conferences and/or forums A: HEMSNE TERHmE

B: reading journals, updates, articles and/or materials etc. B:  HIEHAT B XER S HEMHE
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
have been separated as required by Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code. For the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Shi Zhongan served as
the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Yang Guang served as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Board meetings

Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of majority of directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings regularly.
Notice of not less than 14 days is given of all regular Board meetings to
allow all Directors to attend and include matters in the agenda. For other
committee meetings, 7 days’ notice is given. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are despatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before meetings to ensure they have sufficient time to
review these documents and be adequately prepared. When the Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the
matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the chairman before the meeting.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board also held
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors during the Reporting Period in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are recorded in
detail and include the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held
so that they have an opportunity to request amendments.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELSRS (@

The Company did not convene an annual general meeting, and the Board
convened three Board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this annual report. The table below sets forth the details

of the attendance at these Board meetings:

REE2023F12A3MBEFEREERE

RAHML AR U EARRRBAFAE

MEFEERT=ZREFTEH - TR

ZEEFEERMNHFEFE !

Number of meetings attended/
held during the Director’s term of office

ERENEHALERTEERY

Annual
Board meetings general meeting
Name of Director = Exgg; BRBERY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman) Rzt (FFE) 3/3 N/ATER
Mr. Sun Zhihua BEERE 3/3 N/ATER
Mr. Yang Guang e 3/1 N/AT3E F
(newly appointed with effect on (38202348525 H /)
25 August 2023)
Ms. Xu Jianying (Ey=tikogun 3/3  N/ATEMA
Mr. Ding Lei T&EEE 3/1 N/AT3E F
(newly appointed with effect on (78202348525 H /)
25 August 2023)
Mr. Lu Jianguo EREfE 3/2  N/ATER
(resigned with effect on 25 August 2023) (720234 8/525 A ##1F)
Independent Non-executive Directors B JEMITES
Mr. Liang Xinjun REERE 3/3  N/ATEMA
Mr. Chung Chong Sun AT E 3/3  N/ATEMA
Mr. Chiu Ngam e =pie 3/3  N/ATEMA
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration
Committee and a Nomination Committee. Each of these committees has
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties. The chairmen of these committees will report their findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

Audit Committee

Our Board has established an audit committee in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and Code D.3 of the CG Code, and has adopted written
terms of reference. The primary duties of our Audit Committee are to review
and monitor the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control system, to oversee the audit process, to provide advice and
comments to our Board, and to perform other duties and responsibilities as
may be assigned by the Board.

The chairperson of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chung Chong Sun. The other
members are Mr. Liang Xinjun and Mr. Chiu Ngam. The Audit Committee
comprised all of the three independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees, and terms of engagement
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Auditor;

2. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance officer
of the Company or the Auditor before submission to the Board; and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system, and risk management
system, and the associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs, and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
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The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange and Company websites.

Our Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and confirmed
that it has complied all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. The Audit Committee has
also discussed the matters of audit and financial reporting. Our Audit
Committee has also reviewed the significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management systems
and connected transactions, and have discussed with the Auditor about the
tasks they performed.

Our Audit Committee has reviewed the Auditor's remuneration for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and recommended that the Board re-appointing
Ernst & Young as the company’s auditor for the year ending 31 December
2024, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. The Board did not deviate from the recommendations of the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of an
external auditor.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held to discuss and
consider the following matters:

o reviewed the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
six months ended 30 June 2023;

o reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2023;

o reviewed the Auditor’s report in relation to the audit plan and strategy
of the Group;

o reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and
made recommendations to the Board on the improvement of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company; and

o reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal audit
function of the Company and made recommendations to the Board on
the improvement of the internal audit function of the Company.
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The attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table
below:

REREZEENELFZETENBERE
i

Number of
meetings
attended/

held during the
Director’s term

of office

EEREHALRE

Name of committee member LZEEREHS S BITEERY
Mr. Chung Chong Sun (Chairman) BRI E (EFF) 11
Mr. Liang Xinjun REEXE 11
Mr. Chiu Ngam fi-p=p i 11

Remuneration Committee

Our Board has established a Remuneration Committee in compliance
with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and Code E.1 of the CG
Code and has adopted written terms of reference. The primary duties
of our Remuneration Committee are to establish, review and make
recommendations to the Directors on our policy and structure concerning
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies concerning such remuneration, determine the terms of the specific
remuneration package of each executive Director and senior management
and review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives. Our Remuneration Committee currently
consists of two executive Directors, Mr. Sun Zhihua and Ms. Xu Jianying, and
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Chong Sun, Mr. Liang
Xinjun, and Mr. Chiu Ngam. Our Remuneration Committee is currently
chaired by Mr. Liang Xinjun.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the recommendation model
described in E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EERSHREIERERE ZH
Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the Board and senior REFAB AR EZTEREREEEKE
management of the Company, whose biographies are set out on pages 112 (HEBRHNRAFRF112E1148) 126 E
to 114 of this annual report, for the Reporting Period, are set out below: S0 BEEIWT
Number of Total
Number of Senior Number of
Directors Management individuals
Remuneration band (RMB) e E (AR EEAY SREEEAH A
0 to 1,000,000 0Z1,000,000 7 2 9
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001 % 2,000,000 2 1 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or past directors RSB AEB N BB AR A B EEHA
of the Company and the senior management (including five highest paid FEEhaHREEE (ETFBERALREH
individuals) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as A ) O fEAMAKREREMA
compensation for loss of office during the Reporting Period. REEFRFNREREABERAEE-

Our Remuneration Committee convened 1 meeting during the Reporting REBREHE NS EERMIRGEH TR
Period. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at the BIZEGENHEFHE .
meeting:

Number of
meetings
attended/

held during the
Director’s term

of office

EENTHAALE

Name of committee member ZEEREHA S BITEERE
Mr. Liang Xinjun(Chairman) REERE (FHE 1/1
Mr. Sun Zhihua BEERE 1/1
Ms. Xu Jianying REBL LT 1/1
Mr. Chung Chong Sun SER A 11
Mr. Chiu Ngam b =pie 1/1
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The major work performed by our remuneration committee during the
Reporting Period included, among others, the following:

° reviewed and made recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration packages and overall benefits for the Directors and the
senior management of the Company;

° made recommendations to the Board in relation to all consultancy
agreements and service contracts or any variations, renewals or
modifications thereof, entered into between the Company and the
Directors and senior management of the Company or any associate
company of any of them;

° considered what details of the remuneration/benefits of the Directors
should be reported in the Company’s corporate governance report in
the annual report and how those details should be presented, including
determining the policy for the remuneration of Directors, assessing
the performance of executive Directors and approving the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts; and

o made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating remuneration policy.

Nomination Committee

Our Board has established a nomination committee in compliance with
Code B.3 of the CG Code, and has adopted written terms of reference.
The primary duties of our Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of our Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes to the
composition of our Board, identify, select or make recommendations to
our Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship, and
ensure the diversity of our Board members, assess the independence of
our independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations to
our Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors. Our
Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive Director, Mr. Shi
Zhongan, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Chong
Sun and Mr. Liang Xinjun. Our Nomination Committee is currently chaired by
Mr. Shi Zhongan.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Our nomination committee convened 1 meeting during the Reporting Period.
The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at the meeting:

EEERERS (B)

REBEHE RREEETAMINGHE - T&
IR HFEFS -

Number of
meetings
attended/

held during the
Director’s term

of office

EEREHALRE

Name of committee member LZEEREHS S BITEERY
Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman) M2t (F5FE) 1/1
Mr. Liang Xinjun ZEBERLE 11
Mr. Chung Chong Sun AT E 1/1

The work performed by our nomination committee included, among others,
the following:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

assessed the independence of the independent non-executive

Directors;

made recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors; and

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the nomination
policy.

Nomination Policy

v

Objective

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates and
make recommendations to the Shareholders for election as the
Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual
vacancies.

The Nomination Committee may, as it considers appropriate, nominate
a number of candidates more than the number of Directors to be
appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or the number of
casual vacancies to be filled.
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(i)

Selection Criteria

In assessing a proposed candidate for the recommendation of
appointment or re-appointment of the members of the Board, the
factors would be used as reference by the nomination committee
include but not limited to the following:

(@ integrity;

(b)  accomplishment and experience in the industry of which the
Company is a part;

() commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(d)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

(e)  fulfilment of independence guidelines for the appointment of
independent non-executive Directors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules; and

(] any factors as the nomination committee or the Board may, from
time to time, consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will ask the proposed candidates to submit
the necessary personal information in a prescribed form.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing members of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Articles of Association and other applicable rules
and regulations.
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Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from
the members of the Board, if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also
put forward candidates for consideration.

In the context of the appointment of any proposed candidate to
the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of such individual candidate and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing members of the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation, for the proposed
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

Please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for selection as a Director”, which is available on the Company’s
website, for procedures for Shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a Director.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fee paid/payable to the external
auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services is
set out as follows:

(i)
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Audit and related service
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 which give a true and fair
view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results
and cash flows.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry
out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 70 to 75 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and for reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company recognizes that risk management is critical to the success
of any property management companies in the PRC. Key operational risks
that the Company face include changes in general market conditions and
the regulatory environment of the PRC property management market, local
economic environment, expansion risks relating to entering into new cities or
geographic regions, ability to timely complete our projects with sound quality,
available financing to support our growth, competition from other property
management companies and our ability to promote and serve the property
owners in a timely fashion.

In order to meet these challenges, the Company have adopted, a series
of internal control policies, procedures and plans that are designed to
reasonably assure effective and efficient operations, reliable financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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In order to ensure the effective implementation of such internal control
policies, the Company has adopted various on-going measures, including
the following:

o The Board is responsible and has general powers over the
management and conduct of the business of the Group. Any
significant business decision involving material risks are reviewed,
analyzed and approved at the Board level to ensure a thorough
examination of the associated risks at our highest corporate
governance body.

° The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Board regarding
the effectiveness of comprehensive risk management, which in turn
is accountable to the general meetings of the Company. The Chief
Executive Officer is able to authorize relevant department leaders
who take charge of the establishment and daily operation of the risk
management systems.

o The risk management department of the Company is responsible
for proposing risk management strategies, formulating rules and
regulations on risk management, preparing annual risk management
assessments and reports, guiding all departments and subsidiaries on
relevant tasks, and conducting risk management trainings. It is also
in charge of designing a comprehensive risk management evaluation
system, and supervising the implementation of risk management
measures.

o Each of functional departments and subsidiaries of the Company is
in charge of the daily business operations and risk monitoring, and is
responsible for the supervision of the respective fields of operations on
a daily basis as well as the supervision and approval of any material
business decisions of the city and project companies of the Group.

The Company has conducted annual review on the effectiveness and efficiency
of the Company’s risk management system for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the management confirmed that there is no significant deficiency
and weakness on the risk management system which has been identified.
During the Reporting Period, the Company satisfied and confirmed that the
Company’s risk management system was effective and adequate.
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Internal Control

The internal control system of the Company is designed to provide reasonable
and adequate assurance for effective and efficient operations, reliable financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Our internal control system covers all major aspects of our operations.
To effectively implement such processes, the Company has a set of
comprehensive policies and guidelines that set out details regarding
the internal control standards, segregation of responsibilities, approval
procedures, and personnel accountability in each aspect. The Company also
carries out regular internal assessments and training to ensure our employees
are equipped with sufficient knowledge of such policies and guidelines.

The Company has conducted annual review on the effectiveness and efficiency
of the Company’s internal control system for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the management confirmed that there is no significant deficiency
and weakness on the internal control system which has been identified.
During the Reporting Period, the Company satisfied and confirmed that the
Company’s internal control system was effective and adequate.

Information Disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws and publishes periodic reports and announcements
to the public in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. In particular,
the Company has put in place a robust framework for the disclosure of
inside information in compliance with the SFO. The framework sets out
the procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders
to apprehend the latest position of the Company. The framework and its
effectiveness are subject to review by the Board on a regular basis.

Internal Audit

The Company has an internal audit function. The primary role of the
internal audit function is to help the Board and the senior management
of the Company to protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of the
Company. The internal audit function provides independent and objective
assurance as to whether the design and operational effectiveness of
the Company’s framework of risk management, control and governance
processes, as designed and represented by the Company’s management, is
adequate. The internal audit function of the Company is independent of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company.

Results of audit work, together with an assessment of the overall risk
management and control framework, are reported to the Audit Committee
as appropriate. The internal audit function also reviews the action plans of
the Company’s management in relation to audit findings and verifies the
adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating controls before formally closing
the issue.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Company Secretary

Mr. Yeung Man (“Mr. Yeung”), Simon has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company in 2021. Mr. Yeung is a fellow member of
the HKICPA and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Yeung has
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders
Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company is committed to pursuing active dialogue with Shareholders as
well as to provide timely disclosure of information concerning the Company’s
material developments to its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

Annual general meeting of the Company serves as an effective forum for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Notice of annual
general meeting together with the meeting materials will be despatched
to all Shareholders not less than 21 clear days before the annual general
meeting. As one of the measures to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at general meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors,
for Shareholders’ consideration and voting. In addition, the Company
regards annual general meeting as an important event, and all Directors,
the chairmen of all Board Committees, senior management and external
auditor will attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address
Shareholders’ inquiries. If the chairmen of the Board or each Board
Committee fail to attend the meeting, then other members of each Board
Committee will be invited to attend the annual general meeting and answer
Shareholders’ inquiries thereat. All resolutions proposed at general meetings
will be voted by poll. The voting results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.zazhsh.com)
on the same day of the relevant general meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
(www.zazhsh.com), where the latest information and updates on its business
operation and development, corporate governance practice, contact
information of investor relations and other information are published for the
public’s access.
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EEERKRS (B

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

In accordance with article 17 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the voting rights, on a one vote per share basis, of the issued
Shares which as at that date carry the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company. The Shareholders’ requisition must state the objects and the
resolutions to be added to the agenda of the meeting and must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the Registered Office, and may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more requisitionists. If there are no Directors
as at the date of the deposit of the Shareholders’ requisition or if the
Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the Members’
requisition duly proceed to convene a general meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of the requisitionists, may themselves
convene a general meeting, but any meeting so convened shall be held no
later than the day which falls three months after the expiration of the said 21
day period.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Articles of Association and the
Cayman lIslands Companies Law. However, Shareholders who wish to
propose resolutions may follow article 17 of the Articles of Association for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution
at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of article 17 are set out
above. Shareholders may at any time lodge the aforesaid requisition to the
Board in writing at the Company’s principal place of business in Room 4009,
40/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their inquiries and concerns to the Board

in writing through investor relations whose contact details are as follows:

Address:
Room 4009, 40/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

Email: www.zazhsh.com

Amendment to the Memorandum and Articles of
Associations

The Company’s memorandum and articles of association did not change
during the Reporting Period.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shi Zhongan (“Mr. Shi”) (alias Shi Kancheng), aged 61, was appointed
as our Director on November 16, 2020 and re-designated as our executive
Director and chairman of the Board on June 4, 2021. Mr. Shi is responsible
for overseeing business development, formulation and implementation of
business strategies of our Group. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of our Board. He currently holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Remaining Group and our Group.

Mr. Shi has over 31 years’ experience in overall strategic planning and
corporate operations, investment and financial decisions and financial
management relating to property management and property development
industry. Mr. Shi served as a tax officer in the finance and revenue bureau
of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou. Mr. Shi joined Zhong An Group since the
establishment of the first member of the Zhong An Group, Zhejiang Zhong
An, in December 1997. Since then, he has been overseeing business
development, formulation and implementation of business strategies of
both the property development of the Remaining Zhong An Group and
property management of our Group since their commencement of business
in 1997 and 1998, respectively. Mr. Shi is currently the executive director
and chairman of the board of directors of Zhong An, and the non-executive
director and chairperson of the board of directors of China New City.

Mr. Shi completed a program for presidents of real estate companies
organized by Zhejiang University G#7TA%2)in August 2006 and a program
for executive officers, focusing on globalization and real estate developers,
organized by the Foreign Academic Cultural Exchange Centre of Tsinghua
University CEZEA2Z)in October 2006. Mr. Shi also obtained a doctoral
degree in business administration from State University of Arizona in May
2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EFMEREEAERE (&)

Mr. Sun Zhihua (“Mr. Sun”), aged 45, was appointed as our executive
Director on June 4, 2021 and chief executive officer on March 1, 2021.
Mr. Sun is responsible for the formulation and implementation of business
strategy, daily management and operation of our Group. He is also a
member of the remuneration committee of our Board. On 25 August 2023,
Mr. Sun had been redesignated from the chief executive officer to the vice
chairman of the Board.

Mr. Sun has over 22 years of experience in property administration and
management. Mr. Sun joined Zhong An Group in July 2001 and has served
in various positions of Zhong An Group. From July 2001 to March 2003,
he worked as an officer, where he was primarily responsible for office
administration. From March 20083 to February 2012, he worked as manager
of a subsidiary of Zhong An principally engaged in property development,
where he was primarily responsible for its overall operations and expansion
of Zhong An Group’s property management business including the set-
up of Hefei Green Harbor. From February 2012 to April 2014, he worked
as secretary to chief executive officer of Zhong An, where he was primarily
responsible for assisting the chief executive officer in formulation and
implementation of business strategies of both the property development and
property management business of Zhong An Group. From April 2014 to April
2018, he worked as manager of chief executive officer's office and head
of the operation center of Zhong An, where he was primarily responsible
for Zhong An Group’s overall operations and assisting the chief executive
officer in formulation and implementation of strategies of both the property
development and property management business of Zhong An Group. From
April 2018 to March 2021, he worked as general manager of the engineering
operation center of Zhong An and was responsible for strategic planning,
project engineering administration and management of Zhong An Group.
In February 2020, Mr. Sun also undertook the responsibility as assistant to
chief executive officer of Zhong An where he was primarily responsible for
assisting the chief executive officer of Zhong An with its overall strategic
development and major business decisions.

Mr. Sun obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering majoring in

technological economics of Zhejiang University of Technology GHi 71 T2k
2)in June 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Yang Guang (“Mr. Yang”), aged 44, joined the Group as a general
manager on 3 January 2023 (where he ceased to hold such office
immediately after being appointed as an executive Director on 25 August
2023). Before joining our Group, Mr. Yang was the executive president and
executive director of Redsun Services Group Limited (stock code: 1971) from
December 2019 to September 2022, where he joined as the vice president
in January 2019. From September 2016 to January 2019, Mr. Yang was
promoted from the general manager of the Beijing branch to the vice general
manager of the Sunan branch and eventually to the general manager of the
Nanjing branch, Hefei branch and Xuzhou branch of Longhu Property Service
Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Yang was also the vice general manager, the Changzhou
branch general manager, and the Nanjing branch general manager of Xin
Cheng Yue Property Management Services Co., Ltd. Between July 2014
and September 2016. From June 2013 to August 2014, Mr. Yang was the
vice general manager of the Taizhou Wanda Commercial Plaza Management
Co., Ltd. Prior to that, Mr. Yang joined Nanjing Red Star International
Furniture Decoration City Co., Ltd. As the department head of the property
department in September 2007 and Nanjing China Merchants Property
Management Co., Ltd. as the manager of from July 1999 to May 2005.

Mr. Yang has approximately 25 years of experience in property management
services and is a qualified National Property Management Enterprise
Manager. Mr. Yang received a graduation certificate for the completion of
the tourism management course at Nanjing Normal University in the PRC in
2009.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EFMEREEAERE (&)

Ms. Xu Jianying (“Ms. Xu”), aged 49, was appointed as our executive
Director on 4 June 2021 and head of financial management center on 31
March 2021. Ms. Xu is responsible for financial management of our Group.
She is also a member of the remuneration committee of our Board.

Ms. Xu has over 19 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. Ms. Xu joined Zhong An Group in January 2007. From
January 2007 to August 2011, Ms. Xu worked as an officer at the financial
management center of Zhong An, where she was primarily responsible for
its daily operation and management. From August 2011 to October 2012,
Ms. Xu was promoted to manager of the finance department of Zhong An
Management, where she was primarily responsible for managing the finance
department. From October 2012 to October 2015, Ms. Xu worked as deputy
head of finance of Zhong An Service Holding, where she was primarily
responsible for managing the finance department and strategic financial
planning. From October 2015 to April 2019, Ms. Xu worked as deputy
general manager of financial investment center of Zhong An Service Holding,
where she was primarily responsible for financial management and strategic
financial planning. From April 2019 to September 2020, she worked as head
of finance of Zhong An Management, where she was primarily responsible
for managing and supervising its operation. From September 2020 to March
2021,she worked as head of financial management center of Zhong An
Management where she was primarily responsible for financial and budget
management and capital operations of property management business
of Zhong An Group. Prior to joining of Zhong An Group, from April 2003
to January 2007, Ms. Xu served as head of finance of Zhejiang Wenhua
Garments Co.,Ltd. (I X EMREM B PR/AB)) and was primarily responsible
for financial management and accounting matters.

Ms. Xu obtained a diploma in accounting from Zhejiang Sci-tech University
GHIIE T AZ)in January 2010 through part-time study. She became a
qualified international certified management accountant of the International
Certified Management Accountant Association in November 2016. Ms. Xu
obtained the qualification of tax accountant (intermediate level)issued by
China Association of Chief Financial Officers (P El48 S 5t ET 1) in January
2021.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Ding Lei (“Mr. Ding”) aged 43, has been appointed as a general manager
of Wanlu region of the Group since March 2021. Mr. Ding is responsible for
the operations, investment and quality control of projects in Wanlu region,
covering Anhui province and Shandong province. He is also the director
of Anhui Zhongan Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Anhui Zhongan
Property”) and Hefei Green Harbor Property Management Co., Ltd. (‘Hefei
Green Harbor”) which are subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ding has over 16 years of experience in the property management
industry. From July 2006 to July 2009, Mr. Ding worked as quality control
officer of Zhejiang Zhong An Property Management Co., Ltd. (‘Zhong An
Management”), where he was primarily responsible for quality control
operation. He left the Zhong An Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Zhong
An Group”) in July 2009 and worked as a quality control manager at
Zhejiang Nade Property Management Co., Ltd. GV IANEYERFEBRE A
B]) (currently known as Zhejiang Wanxingheng Service Co., Ltd. Gi71 & E1E
RFFARAT])) from July 2009 to June 2010 and was primarily responsible
for quality control and system implementation. Mr. Ding re-joined the Zhong
An Group in June 2010. From June 2010 to March 2016, he worked as
a property manager of Zhong An Management, where he was primarily
responsible for operation and management of property management
projects. From March 2016 to January 2018, Mr. Ding worked as deputy
general manager of Anhui Zhongan Property, where he was primarily
responsible for overseeing the property management business in Huaibei
region. From January 2018 to April 2019, Mr. Ding worked as a general
manager of Anhui region of Zhong An Management, where he was primarily
responsible for the management of the Huaibei and Hefei branch offices.
From April 2019 to March 2021, Mr. Ding worked as a deputy general
manager of Zhong An Management, where he was primarily responsible
for day-to-day operation and management of the property management
business of the Zhong An Group. From September 2020 to March 2021, Mr.
Ding also undertook the responsibility as general manager of Wanlu region of
Zhong An Management, where he was primarily responsible for its operation
and management of property management business in Anhui and Shandong
regions. Since May 2019, Mr. Ding has also been serving as director and
general manager of Anhui Zhongan Property and Hefei Green Harbor, where
he is primarily responsible for their daily operation and management.

In July 2018, Mr. Ding obtained a diploma in administrative management
from the University of International Business and Economics (& 9MEHE B 5
K E2) via distance learning.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Chong Sun (“Mr. Chung”), aged 48, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on December 14, 2021. Mr. Chung is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. He is also the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
our Board.

Mr. Chung has over 25 years of professional experience in financing and
capital operations. From July 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Chung worked as an
associate of the investment bank department in Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) as his last position and was responsible for projects of initial
public offering, corporate finance and providing financial advice. From May
2000 to July 2001, Mr. Chung worked as a senior executive in Deloitte
& Touche Corporate Finance Limited (%1% #5EERI B RAE]) and
was responsible for projects of initial public offering, corporate finance and
providing financial advice. From August 2001 to August 2003, Mr. Chung
worked as an associate director of mergers and acquisitions department as
his last position in Cooperative Rabobank U.A. Hong Kong Branch (fr &
E1EIRTTE A 2D17), a Dutch multinational banking and financial services
company. From August 2003 to December 2005, Mr. Chung worked
as manager of Mainland investment promotion unit in InvestHK of the
government of Hong Kong (¥ & # & &) and was responsible for introducing
Hong Kong to overseas and Mainland entrepreneurs. From December 2005
to September 2018, Mr. Chung worked as senior vice president of issuer
services, market development department in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (BBX 5 M&GEEFIAMRAE) and was responsible for
establishing the ecosystem for the listing of mainland enterprises in Hong
Kong, including, among others, mainland client relationship management and
mainland marketing. From September 2018 to July 2019, Mr. Chung worked
as a chief financial officer in Xiaoi Robot Technology (H.K.) Limited (&%8%
BRE RS AR/AE) and was responsible for financial functions, risk
management and investor relations. He has been the director of Resourceful
Minds Limited CER&%& FR/A ) since September 2018 and is primarily
responsible for the daily operations and providing strategic advice. From
November 2018 to November 2019, Mr. Chung served as a director of the
executive committee and a contact convener of the Al and Hi-Tech Group
in the Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in China-Shanghai (FEI& 7 (ith
&) @ &-_E78) . Mr. Chung has been appointed as a member of the advisory
committee of the IT Innovation Lab in Secondary Schools Initiative by the
government of Hong Kong since September 2020. Mr. Chung is currently an
independent non-executive director of Radiance Holdings (Group) Company
Limited (stock code: 9993) and Strawbear Entertainment Group (stock
code: 2125), shares of which are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in May 1997. He is also a CPA of
Washington State Board of Accountancy since July 2003 and a CFA of CFA
Institute since September 2004, and a member of American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Liang Xinjun (“Mr. Liang”), aged 55, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on December 14, 2021. Mr. Liang is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee and nomination committee
of our Board.

Mr. Liang was one of the founders of Fosun Group. He served as executive
director, vice chairman and chief executive officer of Fosun International
Limited (stock code: 0656) between August 2005 to March 2017, shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Liang is the
committee member at the Private Equity and M&A Fund Committee for Asset
Management Association of China (FEIEH IR ERE S EHE), Chief Expert
specializing in investment of the Chief Expert Group of Insurance Association
of China and director of Tongiji University (B A £2) board of trustees.

Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’s degree in science majoring in genetics from
Fudan University (8 B A2)in July 1991. He obtained an executive master
degree in business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (1@ 2 B7)in April 2007. Mr. Liang also obtained a doctorate
degree in business administration (global financial management) from Arizona
State University in May 2015.

Mr. Chiu Ngam (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 50, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 14 December 2021. Mr. Chiu is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. He is also a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of our Board.

Mr. Chiu has over 26 years of professional experience in financial
management. From August 1997 to November 2001, Mr. Chiu worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. Hong Kong, an international accounting firm,
with his last position as a senior associate. From November 2001 to May
2002, he worked as a senior accountant in eForce Management Limited,
an operation vehicle of eForce Holdings Limited (BRHERERAT), a
manufacturer and seller of healthcare and household products, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0943). From May 2002 to August 2004, he worked as a finance manager
in Minmetals Land Limited (7 #&#1Z & R A E)) (formerly known as ONFEM
Holdings Limited (RABBEEABRAF)), a company engaged in real
estate development, specialized construction, and property leasing, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0230). From June 2005 to May 2007, he worked as an assistant financial
controller of ITC Properties Management Limited ({213 Z BB B R AT), a
property development and investment company and the shares of its parent
company, ITC Properties Group Limited are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0199). From May 2007 to March 2008, he
worked as a group financial controller in Carrianna Group Holdings Company
Limited ((EE £ B IERR A RA ) (formerly known as Tak Sing Alliance
Holdings Limited (2 £ ), a company engaged in property, restaurant,
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EFMEREEAERE (&)

food and hotel, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0126). From February 2008 to November 2008, he
worked as a financial controller in China Oriental Group Company Limited (77
B A EEERAERAER), a manufacturer and seller of steel and property
developer, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0581). From April 2009 to March 2010, he worked as a vice
president of finance of a subsidiary of Genting Hong Kong Limited (ETBZ
B A BR/AE), a cruise, entertainment and hospitality company, whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0678).
From March 2010 to July 2015, he worked as a financial controller and
company secretary in China Golden Development Holdings Limited (currently
known as Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (42 15 24 A R
‘AE))), a commercial property operator and investment company, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0162). From July 2015 to February 2017, he worked as a financial controller
and company secretary of China Sandi Holdings Limited (FHE =383/ H
BR/AE)), a property development and property investment company, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0910). From February 2017 to February 2019, he served as a chief financial
officer and company secretary of China New City, a property development
company, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1321). From December 2018 to August 2019, he worked
as a chief financial officer of Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (=8%
RS (2 E) BBR/AE]), a property development and property investment
company, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2183). From August 2019 and November 2019 to September
2023, Mr. Chiu served as the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited (“‘Radiance Holdings”),
respectively, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9993) and is primarily responsible for financial
management and company secretarial matters, on 30 September 2023, Mr.
Chiu has been appointed as advisor of the Radiance Holdings. In December
2021, Mr. Chiu was awarded “The Best CFO Award” in the “2021 China
Financial Awards” by China Financial Market magazine.

Mr. Chiu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration in
accounting from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in July
1997. Mr. Chiu has been a CPA since October 2000 and a fellow of HKICPA
since September 2009. He has also been a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since January 1999, a CPA of Washington
State Board of Accountancy since January 1999, and is a member of INSOL
International, a member of taxation faculty of HKICPA and a member of
restructuring and insolvency faculty of HKICPA.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report

B 32 Fr AR 1 (B&15 SR - 0126) © 722008
F2BE2008F 115 HEEFEERHER
ERBERABINMEEE 2 AR AMEE
ERfHEEn BHEMRER  ERMOINE
RFrEMR L™ (BRMHB SR - 0581) © 722009
F4BE2010F38 HEFEBEEBR
REMBABNHHE LT 2B A —
R EBbH IR EERFE A HRD K
RFrEMR L™ (BRHBARSE - 0678) ©#22010
FEI/E2015F7H  HIEFFEESEER
BIRAR CREBAMALETTAXEERERA
) W BEERADWE ZAAAE—R
AEYESEBMRLERAR ARG
FrEfR £ (R L5E - 0162) © jR20155F
7TEE2017F28  EERMN P E = BT R
BRAB (—REMPEZTER LT B
SBARTE D 0910) WY EREBERMERE AR
B)) EEMBEERABME - 20174F
2B E2019F28  ERAFEFHT (—KE
MERE NS ERMIPEBZMER LT
BRIDASE - 1321) i BB AERMEE
FRNBWER2018FE 128 £2019488 »
HEBR=HBZR (EE) BRAE (—RK
PR EMR S BRMDAIE 1 2183) 1
MERERMERENE) BUAERM
B E ©1R20194F88 &2019411 8 E£20234F
OB Bt EDRIETESEZER (EE) BR
RE) (TEREER) > ERMD AT ER L™
(B&1D1L5E - 9993)) BEEM B E R A B M
=, T B ENEEERATNEEE B
2023F9830HE A EZTATIEE
BEEERS o 12202145128 » Bt £ P EME
MM 2021 E P EI R E A 8% ) PSS TR (E
BEMEELSE] -

AT ET B ESEBRE AR TH
B (Fst2) 2121 o 4 B2000£E10
BB SR AT 2 51 M 2 5B A 5200949 itE
ERUATSGAMATEFEE - HINE
190051 B ER I A EFEM i e S
8 ; B1999F1 A RE R A A FEREMN G5t
ZEGHME st AHAEBRAEHENR
XERGLE FRAOHMAATRHREE
BEEEREBEIMAREAHAREKESIE

HEEEES-



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yang Zhigin (“Ms. Yang”), aged 46, was appointed as the head of
community value-added services division of our Group in March 2021. Ms.
Yang is responsible for community value-added operation management.

Ms. Yang has over 13 years of experience in corporate management. From
October 2009 to March 2013, Ms. Yang worked as an assistant to the
general manager and the manager of the human resources department of
Zhejiang FF Electrical Power Equipment Co., Ltd. (I #EEHHZHBREA
7l), a company engaged in electrical power equipment manufacturing, where
she was primarily responsible for overseeing the administrative affairs and
assisting the general manager in its daily operation. Ms. Yang joined Zhong
An Group in March 2013. From March 2013 to November 2016, Ms. Yang
worked as deputy general manager of a subsidiary of Zhong An principally
engaged in provision of housekeeping services, where she was primarily
responsible for its daily operation and management. From November
2016 to April 2019, Ms. Yang worked as an assistant to the general
manager of Zhong An Management and was responsible for assisting the
general manager in the day-to-day operation and administration of Zhong
An Management. From April 2019 to March 2021, Ms. Yang worked as
secretary of the office of the board of directors and subsequently as head
of operation management center of Zhong An Management where she was
primarily responsible for the operation and management of community value-
added services and its administration.

Ms. Yang obtained a certificate of human resources management (A 7]
ERE AN issued by Occupational Skill Testing Authority (B2 $SEZEE
(5%) A1) in December 2005. Ms. Yang obtained a diploma in business
management from Southwest University of Science and Technology (78 = %}
£ K2 in January 2011,
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Mr. Xu Pengcheng (“Mr. Xu”), aged 38, was appointed as head of operation
management center of our Group on March 31, 2021. Mr. Xu is responsible
for daily operation and management of our Group. He is also the director of
Huaibei Zhonghong which is a subsidiary of our Company.

Mr. Xu has over 8 years of experience in corporate management. From
March 2009 to April 2011, Mr. Xu worked as a hydropower installation
engineer in Anhui Wanbei Coal and Electricity Hengxin Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (ZHEBRIEEEEEZEMEREFRL D),
a company engaged in the real estate industry, where he was primarily
responsible for managing hydropower engineering of projects under
development. Mr. Xu joined Zhong An Group in April 2011. From April 2011
to April 20183, he worked as an electrical and mechanical installation engineer
of a subsidiary of Zhong An principally engaged in property development,
where he was primarily responsible for managing hydropower engineering
of projects under development. From April 2013 to April 2014, he worked
as an electrical and mechanical installation engineer of Zhong An and was
primarily responsible for managing hydropower engineering of projects
under development. From April 2014 to April 2017, Mr. Xu worked as
deputy project operation manager of operation center of Zhong An, where
he was primarily responsible for planning and managing its development
projects. From April 2017 to April 2019, he worked as manager of integrated
operation department of a subsidiary of Zhong An principally engaged
in property development, where he was primarily responsible for human
resources, legal management and operation management of real estate
development. From April 2019 to September 2020, Mr. Xu worked as deputy
general manager of Anhui Zhongan Property, and general manager of the
Huaibei branch office of Zhong An, where he was primarily responsible for
their day-to-day operation and management. From September 2020 to
March 2021, he was the head of integrated management center of Zhong
An Management and was primarily responsible for day-to-day management
and operations of the property management business of Zhong An Group.
Since March 2020, Mr. Xu has also been serving as director and general
manager of Huaibei Zhonghong, where he is primarily responsible for its
daily operation and management. Since July 2022. Mr. Xu has been serving
as the chairman of the board of Shaoxing Zhongming, where he is primarily
responsible for its overall management and business decisions.

Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering from China Central

Radio and TV University (FRREREE 17 KAL) (currently known as Open
University of China (BIZX B8R AZR)) in January 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Yeung Man Simon (‘Mr. Yeung”), aged 51, was appointed as chief
financial officer and company secretary of our Company in April 2021.
Mr. Yeung has more than 25 years of experience in corporate finance and
financial management and control. From August 1997 to November 2001,
Mr. Yeung worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd., an audit firm, with his
last position as senior associate. From June 2002 to February 2003, Mr.
Yeung worked in M.POS Limited, a company principally engaged in sales
and development of point of sales systems, as its financial controller. From
August 2003 to October 2004, Mr. Yeung worked in Belmont Corporate
Services Ltd. as its audit manager. In November 2004, Mr. Yeung joined
Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited (stock code: 1178) (currently known as
Huiyin Holdings Group Limited), a company then principally engaged in
manufacturing and sales of health products in the PRC, initially as finance
manager and later promoted as its financial controller in September 2006
and appointed as its company secretary between September 2006 and
September 2007. In the meantime, between July 2007 and June 2011,
Mr. Yeung was also the chief financial officer of Rising Tyre Co., Ltd., a
company principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of tires. Mr. Yeung
left Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited in October 2013 and joined Fair Win
Express Limited, a subsidiary of BeijingWest Industries International Limited
(stock code: 2339), a company principally engaged in manufacturing and
sales of car parts, as its financial controller between November 2013 and
July 2014. From July 2014 to April 2015, Mr. Yeung worked as the vice
president, responsible for financial management and control, of DeTeam
Company Limited (stock code: 65) (currently known as Grand Ocean
Advanced Resources Company Limited), a company then principally
engaged in manufacturing and sales of plastic woven bags, paper bags and
plastic barrels, production and sale of coal and provision of low-rank coal
upgrading services. In May 2015, Mr. Yeung worked as a vice president of
a subsidiary of Crown International Corporation Limited (stock code: 727)
(“Crown International”), responsible for business development, corporate
finance, financial management and control, and was later appointed as the
executive director, chief financial officer of Crown International in August
2015, redesignated as its chief executive officer and executive director in
October 2016 and further appointed as its company secretary in March
2017. Mr. Yeung resigned from Crown International in March 2019. From
May 2019 to September 2019, Mr. Yeung was the head of China market
development department of Creative Property Services Consultants Limited,
a company principally engaged in property management and a subsidiary
of Creative Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code: 3992). Mr. Yeung is
currently an independent non-executive director of International Business
Digital Technology Limited (previously known as Vixtel Technologies Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1782) and Buyang International Holding Inc (stock
code: 2457), shares of which are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Yeung graduated from the University of Georgia with the degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration, major in accounting and finance in
March 1997. Mr. Yeung was admitted as an associate member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (currently known as HKICPA) in April 2002 and
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July
2001.
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Report of the Directors
EREHRS

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property management
services, value-added services mainly to property developers and community
value-added services in the PRC. An analysis of the principal activities of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company’s Shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange since the Listing Date.

Net proceeds from the Global Offering received by the Company were
approximately HK$91.7 million with 126,668,000 new ordinary Shares
issued. The Company also received net proceeds of HK$12.2 million
with 10,746,000 ordinary Shares issued from the partial exercise of Over-
allotment Option.

The total amount of net proceeds from the Global Offering and the partial
exercise of Over-allotment Option of approximately HK$104 million are
proposed to be used for the purposes and in the amounts (adjusted on pro
rata basis based on the actual net proceeds) as disclosed in the Prospectus.

The Company has adopted a cautious approach in using the net proceeds
from the Global Offering, and expects to fully use the remaining balance of
the net proceeds by December 2025. The Company has kept the remaining
balance of the net proceeds in the current account of the Company.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EFTHRS (@

Remaining
Net Proceeds (HK$ million) balance
FrSIEFE (BB AT expected to be
Percentage Available Used Unused  fully used by
FHERER
Purpose R# Rl TEA BE#A XBR BRTERNER
as at as at as at
1 January 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2023
2023 20235 20235
1A1H 12H31H 12H31H
Strategic acquisitions and RIS W ERIGE 55.0% 57.2 0 57.2 By December 2025
investments 12025128 [EAT
Invest and upgrade in hardware and RERARAAT EIEE 30.0% 31.2 0.34 30.86 By December 2025
software for the development of BZHEBEREANMN 120255128 &A1
communities across the projects KB
the Company manages
Enrich the service offerings, scale  BAKREE HBEILERS 15.0% 15.6 0.2 154 By December 2025
and efficiency of the Group’s Rtz REER #HE 12025128 [E Al
community value-added services R RE
Total Bt 100% 104 0.54 103.46
RESULTS E 3 |

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 76 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB2.45 cents
per Share (2022: NIL) for the year ended 31 December 2023. The final
dividend is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 6 June 2024 and will be paid on or before 9 August
2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 26 July 2024.

No Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the year.
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ERTHS (@)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend is the embodiment of the operational capability of the
Company, which is also a commitment to share the results of the Company’s
growth with all Shareholders. The payment and the amount of dividends
(if any) depend on our results of operation, cash flows, financial position,
future prospects, and other factors that we may consider relevant. Pursuant
to the dividend policy of the Company disclosed in the Prospectus, and
combined with the payments of the dividends after Listing, we intend to
pay dividends in the amount of not less than 25% of our profit after tax for
each year. Annual dividend is subject to the approval of general meeting of
shareholders. The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the laws of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong Kong and the Articles of
Association.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
20283, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
may be facing, a discussion on the Group’s future business development
and an analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period
using key financial performance indicators are contained in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 25 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has been working on sustainable development and environmental
protection. We spare no effort in making the most out of resources in our
business. Laws and regulations in terms of environment and health are
strictly complied with. Meanwhile, the Group holds various activities to
promote environmental protection in our business. Our goal is to educate
proprietors and all walks of life on creating a green city for the future. The
Group has completed its 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) report which contains our ESG information in 2023 and the
requirements under the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules. The ESG report of the
Company for 2023 will be published at the same time as the publication of
this annual report on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.zazhsh.com).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group clearly understands the importance of regulatory compliance and
the risk of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations. To the best
of the Board’s knowledge, during the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years are set out on page 144 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from Zhong An Group
contributed 24.7% (2022: 32.5%) to the Group’s revenue. Other than the
revenue from Zhong An Group, no revenue derived from sales to a single
customer or a group of customers under common control accounted for
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, purchases from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for 33.1% (2022: 19.1%) of the Group’s
total purchases and the purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amount to 71% (2022: 40.4%).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Company and the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of Company share capital movements during the Reporting Period
are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements and page 78 of this annual report under the section headed
“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
(including share premium and retained earnings of the Company), amounted
to approximately RMB250.2 million (31 December 2022: RMB77.4 million).
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ERTHS (@)

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zzhongan (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Zhihua (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Jianguo (resigned with effect on 25 August 2023)
Mr. Yang Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
(newly appointed with effect on 25 August 2023)
Mr. Ding Lei (newly appointed with effect on 25 August 2023)
Ms. Xu Jianying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liang Xinjun
Mr. Chung Chong Sun
Mr. Chiu Ngam

In accordance with Article 26.3 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Yang
Guang and Mr. Ding Lei, appointed as executive Directors on 25 August
2023 shall retire and, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

In accordance with Article 26.4 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Xu Jianying
and Mr. Chiu Ngam shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
Company’s circular to the Shareholders dated 25 April 2024.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 45 to 55 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be
independent throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years, which may be renewable
automatically subject to both parties’ agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director or entity connected
with the Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

The Company has received the annual confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance in 2023 with the non-competition
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition issued to the Company
in 2023. Details of the Deed of Non-Competition are set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up to review the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management and
comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company are
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The main business of the Company is conducted in China, and for this
purpose, in accordance with the applicable Chinese laws, we participate in
a social insurance plan (including pension insurance) (the “Social Security
Plan”) organized by the Chinese government. Under the Social Security
Plan, employers and employees must make contributions at a specified rate
by relevant laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group also participates in pension or similar
plans for all its eligible overseas employees in accordance with local laws:
(i) the Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme
for its qualifying employees in Hong Kong, and contribution is made by each
of the employer and the employee to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
monthly income and the maximum total contribution is HK$3,000 per month.

The Group’s contributions to the Social Security Plan and the MPF Scheme
vest fully and immediately with the employees. During the Reporting Period,
there were neither contribution forfeited by the Group nor had there been
any utilisation of such forfeited contributions to reduce future contributions.
As at 31 December 2023, there were no forfeited contributions which
were available for utilisation by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions to the Social Security Plan and the MPF Scheme.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 25 August
20283. Mr. Yang Guang and Mr. Ding Lei have been appointed as executive
Directors with effect from 25 August 2023.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of Directors’
information of the Company since the date of 20283 interim report is as
follows:

Mr. Chiu Ngam (i) resigned as the company secretary and chief
financial officer and (i) became advisor of Radiance
Holdings (Group) Company Limited (stock code:
9993) with effect from 30 September 2023

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

(i) Interestin Shares of the Company

EFTHRS (@

EHERRERETENAHE

RBi% EHIRA13.51B(1)f§ > B2023F FHIR
LHEREAABRESTERNEFHN T ¢

HELRE (WERANERBEMTE
Rl A EEk EE) AR
R~E (BMHALSE 1 9993) BRI

BH2023FE9H30H AN

EERBAETHABRRS 18
MR 13 R AR A B e

RB

1220235128310 EERFABERSITH
AEBHARE(EFRMEFRG ) EXVEEE
TR8DBMENEERB RN A RT
SHEHEAEBEE (ERER(BHERAERK
B1) BEXVER) BIAR 15 ~ ABRARR 15 K BRI 1R
@A A (BEREGEFRAERG) 1=
EMXWMEREFRRRER D SK
B) > WRBEBHRIEHA)) F3525E2F
SERERRATHEFZLESRM HRELT
RAMERCIPT IR ETRIZANE A RF
FeEp 3P By s BB T

() EXQBRGFEES

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of
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Mr. Shi Interest in controlled corporation® 380,000,000(L) 73.4%
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2) These Shares are held by Zhong An BVI which is wholly-owned by Zhong
An. Zhong An is owned as to approximately 57.89% by Whole Good,
which is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Shi. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Shi is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Zhong An BVI is
interested.
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(ii) Interest in associated corporations of the

(i) EEAFEEEEFNEDR

Company
Number Approximate
Name of Name of associated of shares  percentage of
Director corporation Nature of interest interested” interest
BRI Lty
ERpy L YNGR =S R &E" BAE oL
Mr. Shi Zhong An Interest in controlled corporation? 3,262,411,200() 57.89%
i RE R EZEN R
CNC Interest in controlled corporation® 1,358,859,594(L) 67.58%
PRI EREHEZENERY
Whole Good Beneficial owner 1) 100%
20 BREBA
Notes: Kzt
(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. 1)  FEILARZALREOOEE

(2) These shares are held by Whole Good. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Shi is
deemed to be interested in the shares of Zhong An in which Whole Good

is interested.

) Among these 1,358,859,594 shares of CNC, 1,327,556,000 shares are
held by Ideal World, which is wholly-owned by Zhong An. Zhong An is
owned as to approximately 57.89% by Whole Good, which is directly
wholly-owned by Mr. Shi. In addition, 31,303,594 Shares are held by
Whole Good. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Shi is deemed to be interested in
the shares in which each of Ideal World and Whole Good is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
that was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name of corporation/person Nature of interest interested” interest
BEREREZEN =R

ZERE AL RmME B8 8" BAESL

Zhong An BVI Beneficial owner 380,000,000(L) 73.4%

RZBVI BEREBA

Zhong An® Interest in controlled corporation 380,000,000(L) 73.4%

Rz AREREEN#ER

Whole Good Interest in controlled corporation 380,000,000(L) 73.4%

24 EZEHEENER

Mr. Shi Interest in controlled corporation 380,000,000(L) 73.4%

ik AREREEN#ER

Notes: =3

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. (1) FEILARZALRERONEE -

2) Zhong An BVI is wholly-owned by Zhong An. Zhong An is owned as to
approximately 57.89% by Whole Good, which is directly wholly-owned by Mr.
Shi. By virtue of the SFO, each of Zhong An BVI, Zhong An, Whole Good and
Mr. Shi is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Zhong An BVI is
interested.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, no person (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) had registered an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business partners are
keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed to establishing
a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing quality services
to its customers and enhancing cooperation with its business partners.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has granted to the
Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance with the announcement
requirement for the following transactions subject to (i) the Directors
confirming that those transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole; and (i) the proposed annual caps for those transactions are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Zhong An is one of our Controlling Shareholders, which indirectly owns
approximately 57.89% of the Group’s share capital and CNC is indirectly
held as to approximately 66.02% by Zhong An as of the date of this annual
report and is therefore an associate of Zhong An. CNC is also directly held
as to approximately 1.56% by Whole Good. Therefore, each of Zhong An
and its associates and CNC and its associates is a connected person of the
Company.

Provision of car parking space sales agency services

On 29 December 2022, the Group has entered into a car parking space
sales agency services framework agreement with each of Zhong An and
CNC which will expire on 31 December 2024, pursuant to which our Group
would provide agency services for the sales of unsold car parking space,
including marketing and advertising services, on an exclusive basis, for
such unsold car parking space owned by Zhong An and its associates
(excluding CNC Connected Persons) (‘Remaining Zhong An Connected
Person(s)”), and CNC and its associates (“CNC Connected Person(s),
together with the Remaining Zhong An Connected Person(s), the “Zhong
An Connected Persons”) and located at property projects of them that
are currently managed by us or expected to be provided for the Group’s
management.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Such fees are determined on arms’ length basis and normal commercial
terms. The actual amounts under the car parking space sales agency
services framework agreement with Remaining Zhong An Connected
Persons and the CNC Connected Persons for the year ended 31 December
2023 were approximately RMB10.2 million and RMB1.3 million, respectively.

The cap amounts payable by the Group in respect of the car parking space
sales agency services framework agreement with Remaining Zhong An
Connected Persons and the CNC Connected Persons for the year ended
31 December 2023 were approximately RMB46.5 million and RMB7.5
million, respectively.

Provision of property management services

On 29 December 2022, the Group has entered into a provision of property
management services framework agreement with each of Zhong An and
CNC which will expire on 31 December 2024, pursuant to which our Group
would provide property management services to the Remaining Zhong
An Connected Persons and the CNC Connected Persons in respect of
residential and non-residential property units that are unsold or undelivered.

Such fees are negotiated by the relevant parties in good faith which are
set out in separate service agreements on arms’ length basis and normal
commercial terms. The actual amounts under the provision of property
management services framework agreement with Remaining Zhong An
Connected Persons and the CNC Connected Persons for the year ended
31 December 2023 were approximately RMB17.2 million and RMB15.6
million, respectively.

The cap amounts payable by the Group in respect of the property
management services framework agreement with Remaining Zhong An
Connected Persons and the CNC Connected Persons for the year ended 31
December 2023 were approximately RMB18.0 million and RMB30.0 million,
respectively.

Provision of value-added services

On 29 December 2022, the Group has entered into a value-added services
framework agreement with each of Zhong An and CNC which will expire
on 31 December 2024, pursuant to which pursuant to which our Group
would provide value-added services to the Remaining Zhong An Connected
Persons and the CNC Connected Persons.

Such service fees are negotiated by the relevant parties in good faith which
are set out in separate service agreements on arms’ length basis and normal
commercial terms. The actual amounts under the value-added services
framework agreement with Remaining Zhong An Connected Persons and
the CNC Connected Persons for the year ended 31 December 2023 were
approximately RMB39.1 million and RMB3.5 million, respectively.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ERTHS (@)

The cap amounts payable by the Group in respect of the value-added
services framework agreement with Remaining Zhong An Connected
Persons and the CNC Connected Persons for the year ended 31 December
2023 were approximately RMB76.0 milion and RMB4.0 million, respectively.

The above transactions are regarded as “continuing connected transactions”
and “connected transactions” of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Group confirms that the above disclosure has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its
business, on normal commercial term or better and in accordance with the
terms of the respective agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The board of Directors confirmed that a Group’s auditor has
confirmed the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” in this Report of Directors, during the Reporting Period,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has entered into any contract
of significance or material contract with the controlling Shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, and there is no entering into of
any material contract in respect of the services provided by the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee and adopted the terms of
reference which complied with the CG Code. The chairperson of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Chung Chong Sun. The other members are Mr. Liang
Xinjun and Mr. Chiu Ngam. The Audit Committee comprised all of the three
independent non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed
and discussed with the management of the Group the unaudited interim
condensed consolidated financial information of the Company for the
Reporting Period, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed financial related matters. The Audit Committee
has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and the internal
control systems of the Company, and considers the risk management and
internal control systems to be effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee had, together with the management and Auditor,

reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 26 to 44 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
Shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by
the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, was held by
the public at all times during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The auditor of the Company has not changed in the past three years. Ernst
& Young was appointed as the Auditor for the year ended 31 December
20283. The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young as Auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Shi Zhongan
Chairman

Hangzhou, 26 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR e S CTE R

EY:

To the shareholders of Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong An
Intelligent Living Service Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 76 to 143, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit

Key audit matter matter

BANEROAEE

TEERER TEENER

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount
of trade receivables of the Group was RMB 116.54

Our audit procedures to assess the provision
for expected credit losses on trade receivables

million, including the gross amount of RMB 129.32 included:
million and the allowance for impairment of RMB
12.78 million. (i) obtaining an understanding of how

management assessed the expected
credit losses for trade receivables, and
evaluating the key controls relating to
the monitoring of the recoverability of
trade receivables;

We identified the assessment of expected credit
losses on trade receivables as a key audit matter due

to the significance of the trade receivables balance

to the consolidated financial statements and the
significant judgement exercised by management

in estimating the expected credit losses for trade (il
receivables with the consideration of the existence of
disputes, historical payment records, forward-looking
factors and any other available information that may
impact the estimated expected credit losses.

evaluating and testing the
methodologies and data/parameters
used by management, including
historical loss information, forward-
looking factors and the expected loss
rate;

(i) executing analytical review procedures
by analysing the fluctuations of
significant outstanding balances and
trade receivable turnover days;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZHETER S (B)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

TEEREE (@

How our audit addressed the key audit EMNBRMmEE
Key audit matter matter TEERFE TEERSTE
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables BRI B s BRI
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3and 15t0 ~~ (v) testing, on a sampling basis, the HERBESEREHEER (V) BIRGEEHLERS
the consolidated financial statements. subsequent settlement of trade ELEX)IEE Weig R AR R RE B S A
receivables to cash receipts and the AR EZERIEN
related supporting documentation; BRERER;

v testing the ageing profile of trade ) HRHEEZRHAM
receivables as at 31 December 2023 HEANHEERHE
used in the calculation of the allowance BARWEERER
for impairment of trade receivables, on HE12023E 12831
a sampling basis, to sales invoices and HEZERZIENER

other relevant documents; and

(vi) assessing the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures in the financial statements.

BETIEAE S &

M) EHE BEEERHH
BRERZBERTR
Zo

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZHETER S (B)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheung Ng.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EFEmREMEENER

Year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12H31HILEE
2023 2022
2023% 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HaF ARBETFT NEBFT
REVENUE WA 5 351,133 319,735
Cost of sales HE A (232,319) (203,397)
GROSS PROFIT EF 118,814 116,338
Other income Haug A 5 3,892 2,155
Administrative expenses THR% (49,545) (47,573)
Impairment losses on financial assets, THEERERIBFEE
net (3,846) (2,660)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI AT FI 6 69,315 68,260
Income tax expense FrigfAs 9 (19,891) (17,325)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4 P 49,424 50,935
Profit attributable to: UF A TSR
Owners of the parent BRBEHEA 49,346 50,817
Non-controlling interests JEIE I M 2 78 118
49,424 50,935
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAEEREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY LSRR
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic and diluted BEARNKEE RMB11.2 cents RMB13.4 cents
11 AR#11.25 AE#13.49
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, HRZ2HENHE4E%E (%)
NET OF TAX, FOR THE YEAR 49,424 50,935
Total comprehensive income MTATEGEZEWGAELE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZTE N 49,346 50,817
Non-controlling interests JEFERG = 78 118
49,424 50,935
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BFHMBR IR

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
2023F12A31H 2022512831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARBFT NEBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEBEE
Property and equipment EERRHE 12 4,401 4,611
Intangible assets BLEE 106 66
Deferred tax assets IFIERRIEE &= 13 3,196 2,235
Total non-current assets WIEREEE 7,703 6,912
CURRENT ASSETS TRENEE
Inventories 78 14 224 69
Trade receivables FEURE 5 IR 15 116,534 89,397
Due from related companies FEWAERE A BIRVIE 24 54,555 10,169
Prepayments, other receivables and FE S EfhEWEIE K
other assets Hih&EE 16 53,763 46,761
Cash and cash equivalents BENRIREEEY 17 177,306 44,724
Total current assets BRBBEE 402,382 191,120
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEME
Trade payables FES B ZERRX 18 1,868 1,601
Other payables, deposits received and ~ EfthEFIE BWIR S K
accruals FESTER 19 48,844 42,512
Contract liabilities aHaE 20 51,753 40,118
Tax payable FEIFRIE 9 31,599 20,535
Deferred tax liabilities RILRIBEE 13 1,265 =
Total current liabilities wrEsad 135,329 104,766
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEBEE 267,053 86,354
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERTEEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 274,756 93,266
NET ASSETS BEE 274,756 93,266
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to BREEE AELELD
owners of the parent
Share capital %N 21 4,731 =
Reserves X 22 268,178 91,497
272,909 91,497
Non-controlling interests JEIERR S 1,847 1,769
TOTAL EQUITY RS 274,756 93,266
Yang Guang Xu Jianying LB wEsa
Director Director BE ==
REEBEERSBRAT ZTT=FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SHEREER

Year ended 31 December 2023

#HZE20235F12H31HIEEE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATEA AR
Non-
Share Share Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital Premium* reserve* earnings* Total interests equity
BE  RiNEE  EERE  SEkE B JRERHEG sk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEEFT AREFT AEEFrn AEEFT ARETT ARBEFT AREFT
(Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 22)
(Wzt21) (Hiatzz) (Waz22)
As at 1 January 2022 R2022&181H - (61,823) 10,038 92,465 40,680 1,651 42,331
Profit for the year and total FERAERENZERGEE
comprehensive income for the year - - - 50,817 50,817 118 50,935
Transfer from retained earnings BEERF NG - - 4,104 (4,104) - - -
As at 31 December 2022 and 20225128318 K
1 January 2023 2023F1818 - (61,823) 14,142 139,178 91,497 1,769 93,266
Profit for the year and total ERFERENZENGEE
comprehensive income for the year - - - 49,346 49,346 78 49,424
Capitalization issue ERERT 3,475 (3,475) - - - - -
Proceeds from initial public offering BRARBERSIE 1,158 135,510 = = 136,668 = 136,668
Exercise of the over-allotment option 1T {8 %A fC Bk 1 98 11,496 - - 11,504 - 11,504
Payment for listing expenses St ETRY - (16,196) - - (16,196) - (16,196)
Transfer from retained earnings ERERERE = = 3,809 (3,809) = = =
As at 31 December 2023 12023128310 4,731 65,512 17,951 184,715 272,909 1,847 274,756

* These reserve accounts comprise the total consolidated reserves of * ZERBERBESER2022F 2023 F
RMB91,497,000 and RMB268,178,000 in the consolidated statements of 12A3 T HEHMBRARANESHREER
financial position as at 31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively. EOR A ARBEIT,497,000c e AR #E

268,178,0007T °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SHEAERER
31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Haz ARBFiT NEETFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REHEBEWIRETRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax By =IEIRES 69,315 68,260
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation of items of property and EERFRBEBITE
equipment 6 942 934
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ERH 6 34 30
Impairment of trade receivables FEUR B 5 BRFURE 6 3,846 2,660
74,137 71,884
(Increase)/decrease in inventories EF8 (Em R (155) 12
Increase in trade receivables FEWL & 5 BRFRIE N (30,983) (35,445)
Increase in prepayments, FE I EfhEWEIE K
other receivables and other assets Huh & E1Em (7,002) (23,777)
Increase in amounts due from related FE UK B B A B FRIB IS D
companies (44,386) (6,272)
Increase in trade payables FE(T B 5 BRFRIE A0 267 839
Increase in other payables, deposits HENSHIE  ElREE K
received and accruals FEst & B Ig 6,331 4,543
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilites ~ &#I&EE N, /L) 11,635 (5,321)
Cash generated from operations REXZEENRE 9,844 6,463
Income tax paid [SENIFIRT (8,522) (9,763)
Net cash flows generated CEHIRES S (FER) W
from/(used in) operating activities HEREFEE 1,322 (3,300)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREEBHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property and BEYMEKRREEBE
equipment (732) (580)
Receipt of advances to related companies W EX B8 5 A 5 # 3k 24 - 236
Purchase of intangible assets BEERTEE (74) =
Net cash flows used REEBERANRESREFE
in investing activities (806) (344)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEESEENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from initial public offering BRAMEBEMSNIE 148,262 =
Payment for listing expenses F EmREE (16,196) =
Advances from related companies REER A BB 24 - 3,492
Repayment of advances from related BRI AR M
companies 24 - (5,349)
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEEHEE FER®
financing activities REFE 132,066 (1,857)
REEBEERSBRAT ZTT=FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

SHETRER (B

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
gz AREFIT ANEEFT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBI%) (CRE&ER)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReERFELEEYEM HD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEE 132,582 (5,501)
Cash and cash equivalents FVIRERIREEEY
at beginning of year 44,724 50,225
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FXBEERIREEEY
END OF YEAR 177,306 44,724
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH IR&RIRSLE@MERIF
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B KMIRITH R 17 177,306 44,724
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HHIEZHER KA HFFFIR
in the consolidated statement RPRIRERAEEEY
of cash flows and consolidated
statement of financial position 177,306 44,724

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 16 November 2020. The registered office address of the
Company is the Offices of Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1025 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) were members of Zhong An
Group Limited (“Zhong An”) and its subsidiaries (“Zhong An Group”).
Zhong An, the shares of which have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since November 2007, is the holding company of Zhong An Group.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, value-added services mainly to property
developers and community value-added services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

R TR R 5L

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

RERERER

RATIRR2020F11B16HEHEE
EEMMUIAEREAB] AR F
B9 5 3% 5B BR i HE A Offices of Vistra
(Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802
West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1025 Cayman lIslands ©

KRB A—BREZERAT - ARF
REMB AR BEIAERH) BSRE
EEARRE (MRZ) RENBERF
(MRZ&EH) WRERB - RZ (H
RMHEB2007F 11 AREEBHER
SFTARAT (THIPR) TR ET) &
BMEEEBIERAT

AEEIBERAEARLME (M
H) REMEERRE  TBEAE
3 2 35 8 0 M R AR S R ot MR ER AR
FEo

BRMEBATKNER

KFABEEMBABFEUT :

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

Percentage of

registration and ordinary/registered  equity attributable  Principal
Name place of operations share capital to the Company  activities
ML IR BRITEER/ AT
oy MR EH ERAEE REBEDE ETEEH
2021
20214
Throng Unity Service Limited BVI 13 November 2020 USS$1 100% Investment holding
RERBERAT RBEYES 1E7T 100%  REER
20205118130
Zhong An Management Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% Investment holding
16 November 2020
BRLEEBRAT 54 187 100%  REER
2020F11516H
Zhejiang Zhong An Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 18 November 1998
MWIRENERBERAE HEL/ Bl AR 100,000,0007% 100%  MERE
1998%11518H

REEREERSAERRT

= Sty
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

REREBEF (&)

BRI BATNER (&)

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

Percentage of

registration and ordinary/registered  equity attributable Principal
Name place of operations share capital to the Company  activities
ML, IR BRITEER FRFIEL
aiE ESoE 4= ) MR AEE REESLE TEEH
2021
20214
Anhui Zhong An Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 24 November 2003
ZHREMEEERRAR HE,RER M AR 3,000,0007T 100%  MIERE
20035118248
Hefei Green Harbor Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB500,000 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 1 August 2007
BRgeBEEERERAT  FE/FERM AR 500,0007T 100%  MERE
200748A1H
Zhejiang Chengcheng Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 80%  Property management
Service Co., Ltd. 14 January 2009
LA ERBERAE HE/ Bl AR #10,000,0007c 80%  MERE
2009F1H14H
Huaibei Zhonghong Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 90% Property management
Service Co., Ltd. 30 March 2020
ELRENERBERAE HE/ Bl AE#1,000,0007% 0%  MERE
202043H30H
Zhejiang Runzhou Property Services  PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB13, 080,000 100% Property management
Co., Ltd. 27 November 2014
HIENERBERAS HE/RERH AR 13, 080,0007T 100%  ¥IEBE
20145118278
Hangzhou Zhonghong Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 100% Property management
Service Co., Ltd. 18 November 2020
MNREERBERAST FE/ RE R AR #1,000,0007c 100%  #EEmE
2020511518H
Yuyao Zhongli Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 24 November 2020
KRR INEEEFRAT HE,RER M AR 5,000,0007T 100%  MIERE
2020118248

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

2023 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

QAR REBEF (&)

BRI BATNER (&)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
registration and ordinary/registered  equity attributable Principal
Name place of operations share capital to the Company  activities
ML IR BRITEER FRFIEL
aiE IR S MR AEE REESLE FEEH
2021
20214
Ningbo Zhong An Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 3 November 2021
ERRENEEEERAT HE,/RER M AR #1,000,0007% 100%  MERE
2021%F1183H
Shaoxing Zhong Ming Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB500,000 57% Property management
Service Co., Ltd. 20 July 2022
BRETRNERBERAE HEL/ B AR #500,00075 57%  MERE
2022 7H20H
Hangzhou Zhongzhi Agricultural PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 100% Landscaping
Development Co., Ltd. 27 September 2023
MNREREERERAA HEL/ Bl AR #3,000,0007% 100%  =ERE
2023F9H27H

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

EERVR LRAINALBHMER
BANEERFEFEXENBREER
BEEFENEAFONWBEAG &
ERR REHEMMBADNFES
BRRBEBANRTTR

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

2.1

2.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and
recognises the fair value of any investment retained and any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice

Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8  Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model

2023 Annual Report
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@)

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed
the material accounting policy information in note 2 to the
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since the
Group’s approach and policy align with the amendments,
the amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised IFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
Amendment to IAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements’
IFRS 17
Amendment to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that, these revised IFRSs are unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

° Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

° Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

° Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2. GEEE (@)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.4 EXGFEER (@)
Related parties (Continued) RAEk 7S (48)
or 7
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions () WEUTERNEE

92

applies:

M

(i

(i)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment, electronic and other devices

20%

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss in the reporting period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of the
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of 10 years, which is the license period of the software.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
that are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report

2.

BETECR (8

24 EXGETHEER (8

mAZEE (BRI

SHTESHNETEENBRE
BN AT E - REBGHD
BANETLEEMES AU
HEI R AEE - B EERA
ERFERESBRAERE
EAARPAERERHNER
EEHRERRERAKESD
BT EANKRBERETLEE
B AE H IRBL(E B B R E (R AT o
EAARUERENNETLE
ERNEHAREHETEEED
REMBEERETRE

]

KU REERBERE
25> MR EA0ENEEHERE
H (BDER 3R AT HR) MR ERE
HhiH o

HE

AEBRGONBRTIEEH
BEAREIHE -HEARIR
WAREMmMS FTE—REBARNE
7] 4 B B 2 15 A BRI R
BREESE RS

KEEEBEABA
EHEEREEEEEES

AEFEHERYEHESE ENE
EfA BB EE12E8 %
BRETAEEEEENTES ¥
R ERIR R - EAER
MIEBEEE] LROR A&
ERBHAGAEREIRERS
HBHNERL - REACIZHIHE
EREEBEEEERENHEEH
TR EHRREG ARD A
Bz e



2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. The Group initially
measures receivables, except for trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component, at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding and the Group has a business model to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (@ 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023

2023%F12831H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated

with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of services or goods is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those services or goods.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@  Property management service income

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for services provided on a monthly basis and
recognises as revenue in the amount to which the Group
has a right to invoice and that corresponds directly with
the value of performance completed.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@)

Property management service income (Continued)

The Group charged property management fees in
respect of the property management services on a lump
sum basis. The Group acts as principal and is primarily
responsible for providing the property management
services to the property owners. The Group recognises
the fees received or receivable from property owners as its
revenue and all related property management costs as its
cost of services.

Value-added services mainly to property developers

Value-added services mainly to property developers mainly
include cleaning, security and maintenance services
for pre-sale display units and sales offices of property
developers at the pre-delivery stage.

The Group agrees the price for each service with the
property developers upfront, issues the monthly bill to
the property developers which varies based on the actual
level of service completed in that month, and recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

Value-added services mainly to property developers also
include preliminary planning and design consultancy
services and pre-delivery inspection services to property
developers, which is recognised as revenue over the
period of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023

2023%F12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(c)

Community value-added services

The Group provides community value-added services
mainly including advertising spaces and common area
of commercial and residential property management
services. Revenue from community value-added services
is recognised when the related services are rendered as
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

The Group’s community value-added service revenue also
includes income from the provision of assistance in sales
of car parking spaces to third parties, which is recognised
when the car parking spaces are transferred to the buyers
of car parking spaces.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries operating in Chinese Mainland are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in the PRC. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below:
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of default, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and
amounts due from related companies is disclosed in note 15 and note
24,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segment, has been
identified as the executive directors of the Company. During the
reporting year, the Group was principally engaged in the provision
of property management services, value-added services mainly
to property developers and community value-added services to
customers. Management reviews the operating results of the Group’s
business as one operating segment for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, the chief operating decision maker of the Company regards
that there is only one segment which is used to make strategic
decisions.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group’s revenue from
the external customers is derived solely from its operation in Chinese
Mainland and no non-current assets of the Group are located outside

Chinese Mainland.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from Zhong An Group
contributed 24.73% (2022: 32.48%) to the Group’s revenue. Other
than the revenue from Zhong An Group, no revenue derived from sales
to a single customer or a group of customers under common control
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

REDEER (&)

HE R

AR AEERBIINIEFHRAZE
RERBIRMES > BAREEIFR
&AM E AL P B Pt DS > R G

ERFMEER o
BRFERRNEN

HE2023F12831HIEEE AR
2 B R UR A A5 B IR A 8924.73%
(20224F : 32.48%) °BrIREREZEE
RIWT A4 > B E 20234 20224121
SIHLEEE BMEREHE—FAR
SHEZEGIN—4ET P HENWR ALY

AEEB IR AT0%TE L E o
5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WWAKREMUTA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WARNDUWT :
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEEFT
Revenue from contracts with customers ZTFESHURA
Property management services MEBIERT 261,200 223,593
Value-added services mainly to EEnEMEMEEN
property developers 1R ERTS 58,069 60,729
Community value-added services & B EREE 31,864 35,413
Total 48t 351,133 319,735
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED) 5. WARHEfMKA (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEBREHWA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (@ DIFBWAEHR
Value-added
Property services mainly Community
management to property value-added
services developers services Total
TEER
BEiERES
Types of services IREE MEEERS RIEERYE  HEEERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & F20234 125314 1F /&

Geographical market & iz
Chinese Minland FEl Ayt 261,200 58,069 31,864 351,133

Timing of revenue recognition W A RS2 B R

Revenue recognised over time FEms RS U A 261,200 58,069 20,397 339,666
Revenue recognised at a point in time 73 — B R BhRESRUR A - - 11,467 11,467
Total mst 261,200 58,069 31,864 351,133
Value-added
Property services mainly Community
management to property value-added
services developers services Total
IZEA
EHEREE
Types of services MR EE MEEERS HRERE  HEBIEERS Bt
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000

ANRETT ANRE T ARETT ARETT

For the year ended 31 December 2022 22022412531 H 1F F/Z

Geographical market & iz
Chinese Mainland HEI A 223,593 60,729 35,413 319,735

Timing of revenue recognition W A BB SR

Revenue recognised over time LSt N 223,593 60,729 12,281 296,603
Revenue recognised at a point in time 1A — B E5 SRR A - - 23,132 23,132
Total szt 223,593 60,729 35,413 319,735

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR 109
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the contract

5.

WA B E AU A (48)
ERAHNEA (@)

(a)

BIFBAE R (&)

TREFIRREHBEEDEA
TR REFARSHVEHE

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: &
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEBTFT
Property management services MEBIERT 36,143 43,1156
Performance obligations (b) BHEFHE

For property management services, value-added services mainly
to property developers and community value-added services,
the Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to the
rights to invoices which corresponds directly with the value to
the customers of the Group’s performance to date. The Group
has elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these types of contracts
because for property management services and certain value-
added services mainly to property developers, the Group
recognises revenue in the amount that equals the right to invoice
which corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Group’s performance to date on a monthly basis. As permitted
under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. For community value-
added services, they are rendered in a short period of time,
which is generally less than a year, and there was no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

s ER R MIsE (8)

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED) 5. WAREMUIA (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers ERAHIA (@)
(Continued)
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEBBETFT NEEFT
Other income Hug A
Interest income ISV ON 164 151
Government grants* BT 435 ™ 3,377 928
Others HAth 351 1,076
Total 4E st 3,892 2,155

The government grants are related to expenses and recognised in profit

or loss upon receipt of these grants. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

*

BT A7 B SR R S AR AR B
AR IR S - R E AL

contingencies relating to these grants. WMAREMNEGRNAESE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PR¥EEIFIE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: AEEFRRAFIEENRTIIEIE
2023 2022
2023% 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARBH#EFT NEMFT
Cost of services provided* B AR TS Al A 232,319 203,397
Impairment of trade receivables FEUR B 5 BRFURE 15 3,846 2,660
Depreciation of items of EERZBIBEERE
property and equipment 12 942 934
Amortisation of intangible assets & EEEHY 34 30
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIMA (FEEEEK
and chief executive’s FETHAEME
remuneration (note 7)): (MFE7)) :
Wages and salaries T & Ko #r Bl 197,891 152,984
Pension scheme contributions BIARE T EHK
and social welfare** BRI 28,590 24,185
Total 485t 226,481 177,169
Listing expenses % 4,311 9,864
Auditor’s remuneration ZHEMEN 2 1,415 146
REEBEERSBRAT ZTT=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 6. PFRRRAIFIE (@
& Amounts of RMB153,192,000 and RMB198,633,000 of staff costs were * H E2022F %2023F 12831 H LEF
included in “Cost of services provided” in the consolidated statement of ER> AR1153,192,000t R A K
profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the years ended #%198,633,0007c 89 8 T A A 73 5l 51
31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively. AEHEBEGEREMEEBEKRFPN
MERMARFE A o
- There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as i RS2 NN BRI ERNEERER
the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. BEARL BRIHFEKT o
7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 7. EERFIETHAEME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed R _EmRA] FE A BEHE5383(1)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the @ ~O) ) RMHBEURAE (HEES
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies MmER) RBOE FRNEERE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as BETHASMEIFEWT :
follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Fees: W
Directors = 900 900
Other emoluments: EAthFEN -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERMREYER 3,573 1,777
Performance related bonuses FIRMEATEAL 449 =
Pension scheme contributions BIRE ST EIMERR 110 75
Subtotal et 4,132 1,852
Total “Et 5,032 2,752
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

EERFETHRAEME

(%)

(@) WIUFAITES
ENEFBIIFRATEENR

year were as follows: 2T
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ANEEFT ANEHEFT

Fees: WE

Mr. Chung Chong Sun BRI E 300 300
Mr. Liang Xinjun RIEEXLE 300 300
Mr. Chiu Ngam k=g 300 300
Total st 900 900

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2022: Nil).

Executive directors and the chief executive

AEENEABIFNTES
SATHMBE (20226F © #8) o

b) RETEFREBIH

1=
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances Performance contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare remuneration
BAE
A 4 ®IT HEMREK
e BEEH HERATEAL HEE & 4%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
2023 20235
Executive directors: HITEE .
Mr. Sun Zhihua BEELYE - 1,040 - - 1,040
Mr. Yang Guang (i) LA () - 1,261 - 34 1,295
Mr. Ding Lei (ii) T &) - 444 141 15 600
Mr. Lu Jianguo (i) 8 2 B 5 A i) - 397 150 - 547
Ms. Xu Jianying mEBAL L - 431 158 61 650
Subtotal INEt - 3,573 449 110 4,132
Chief executive and TETHRAER
executive director: HiTEE:
Mr. Shi Zhongan ik - - - - -
Total “ast - 3,573 449 110 4,132

REEBEERSERAT
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 7. EERFETHAEMNE
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (48)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) BITEEREEITH
(Continued) AB (&
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances Performance  contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare  remuneration
BE
E R ®IE EEIERK

ik BYEH HRRATEAL &R Bl =48 88
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

2022 20224

Executive directors: HITEE .

Mr. Sun Zhihua BEERSE = 871 - 39 910

Mr. Lu Jianguo (ii) & 2 B ST A i) - 595 = = 595

Ms. Xu Jianying HREELT = 311 = 36 347

Subtotal N - 1,777 - 75 1,852

Chief executive and FETHASR

executive director: HiTEE:

Mr. Shi Zhongan ik mes - = = = =

Total “est - 1,777 - 75 1,852

Notes: HiaE -

0] Mr. Yang Guang was appointed as an executive director of the @) BB SCE R 2023F8 5250 &
Company on 25 August 2023. BREAERABHITES -

(i) Mr. Ding Lei was appointed as an executive director of the (i) T &R ERR20235F8825H &
Company on 25 August 2023. EREBEABRTES-

(i)  Mr. Lu Jianguo resigned as an executive director of the Company (i)  EEELER2023F8H25H
on 25 August 2023. BERASHITES-

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FEEWRTMAEZTRRENF

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2022: Nil). EMEREMAFHM L (2022

Fi) e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four(2022:three) executive directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
one (2022: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2023, respectively, are as follows:

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

haREHALT

ERNAELBREFALTRBELRSY
(2022%F 1 =) HITEE  Hil&
HBEEEN EXMET - ERNBF T —%
(2022%F . M%) D HIRE E20224F
F22023F 12831 HIEFE W FFARAF
EFFTIETHABNRSHFALN
BB

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B REYET 1,077 1,375
Performance related bonuses FIFMERATEAL - =
Pension scheme contributions and BARETEHR R EER

social welfare 16 30
Total 485t 1,093 1,405

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

FEERIFETBITHAERSHHE
EZMEETIRERENZ AN
T

Number of employees

BEA
2023 2022
20234 20224
Nil to HK$500,000 ZZE500,0005 70 - 1
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 75 %= 1,000,0007 7T - 1
Over HK$1,000,001 #83E1,000,0018 7 1 -
Total 4mst 1 2

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

9. INCOME TAX 9. FRFH
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising REBEBEMEAEEREQNBMER
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group REEBMMERB I EREEL R
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the BERRER AHEN RN MMEE
Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Company and the Group’s subsidiary FIiSHM-RIENEHENEBELE
incorporated in the BVI is not subject to any income tax. The Group’s ERAKRIFEA > R AT RAEBEKHE
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong was not liable for income tax as BRLZEESFMAIINNE AR ESE
it did not have any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the BNERMER HARETFEERESE
year. W EETAERRET KEER
EBTEMRILBIHI B A B EARAAT
/e
PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% on PR ERESRIERNERFEEBEA
the taxable profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries. B SRR I M) B925%H0 1 o
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Current tax: BIHEATRIE :

PRC corporate income tax AR 1 2P ER 19,587 17,990
Deferred tax (note 13) EEFRTE (MF5E13) 304 (665)
Total tax charge for the year FRMIESZ HAREE 19,891 17,325
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

s ER R MIsE (8)

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 9. FrfSH (@
A reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the REARBIMEXRSHMB AT
statutory tax rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the BB NEERE T ERRATFE
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at HAMIERE EREERATEREST
the effective income tax rate is as follows: HBHFERERZHIRNOT
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AERETT

Profit before tax B2 AT Al 69,315 68,260
Tax at the statutory tax rate EEMEFTENRIE 17,329 17,065
Lower tax rate(s) for specific provinces or BEBMAM A KSR
enacted by local authority BRER = 803 =
Withholding tax ictiIn 1,265 -
Tax losses not recognised REETMIEEE 229 -
Expenses not deductible for tax AENRFEZ 265 260
Tax charge at the Group’s effective AEBBREREN
income tax rate T8 RIER 19,891 17,325
Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position REHM R TROEMNIRIETS .
represents:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETT

PRC corporate income tax payable FES PR EFTSR 31,599 20,535
DIVIDENDS 10. g8

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Proposed final - RMB2.45 cent BERP -SRZERARE

(2022: Nil) per ordinary share 2.45%) (20224 : &) 12,653 >
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval KREERZARPKREBEANTRKER
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general RENERITHRRERBEFAE FHb -
meeting.

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR nz



18

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

11.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent of RMB49,346,000 (2022: RMB50,817,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 441,700,225 (2022:
380,000,000), for the purpose of computing basic earnings per share.
The number of ordinary shares has been adjusted retrospectively for
the effect of the issues relating to the capitalisation issue in July 2023
with 379,999,999 shares, and as if the capitalisation issues had been
completed on 1 January 2022.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

11.

AR EBRFEARLE

B

Rgas

—

MAEERELABI M  ERE
AEMNRESATDEERRERSA
AN FREF AR #49,346,0007T
(20224 : AR ¥50,817,0007T) °

ZEAS N T 98 4441,700,22508%
(20224 : 380,000,0008%) 5t& o &
BRYUBEIRE023F7H B AL
17379,999,9900% A& 1/ FY AR R 2 Z24E 1T
BAE  EEALEITER2022
F1HA1ERMK

SHEESREAENTDEAR !

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBHEFT NEEFT
Earnings gl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BAREREKREEFTEA
holders of the parent FEALFI 49,346 50,817
Number of shares
& E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Shares B&1n
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FF B 817 Z 4@ M N0 198K
in issue during the year 441,700,225 380,000,000

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

2023 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

12. ERRHRE

Office
equipment,
electronic and Motor
other devices Machinery vehicles Total
MAERME
Bk
Hz i RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABEFT ABBFT ABEFT ARBETFT
31 December 2023 2023%12831H
At 1 January 2023: FR2023F1 818 :
Cost RAE 4,567 4,236 810 9,613
Accumulated depreciation REHITE (3,024) (1,393) (585) (5,002)
Net carrying amount IREFER 1,543 2,843 225 4,611
At 1 January 2023, F22023F1 818>
net of accumulated depreciation MNERRHITE 1,543 2,843 225 4,611
Additions RE 309 413 10 732
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERITEEHE (552) (347) (43) (942)
At 31 December 2023, 2023F128318 ¢
net of accumulated depreciation MBRRTINE 1,300 2,909 192 4,401
31 December 2023: 2023F 128318 :
Cost RAE 4,876 4,649 820 10,345
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (3,576) (1,740) (628) (5,944)
Net carrying amount IREFER 1,300 2,909 192 4,401
REEBEERSBRAT ZTT=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

12. EER=%E (@)

Office
equipment,
electronic and Motor
other devices Machinery vehicles Total
WAERE
Bk
HAtnzk & W RE HEEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEBFT ANBEFT ANREFT
31 December 2022 2022%12831H
At 1 January 2022: 1220221818
Cost RAE 4,165 4,072 796 9,033
Accumulated depreciation REtieE (2,461) (1,074) (533) (4,068)
Net carrying amount SREVREE 1,704 2,998 263 4,965
At 1 January 2022, 12202215181
net of accumulated depreciation MNREFNE 1,704 2,998 263 4,965
Additions wE 402 164 14 580
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FE R ER (563) (319) (52) (934)
At 31 December 2022, 122022128311
net of accumulated depreciation MBRRFINE 1,543 2,843 225 4,611
31 December 2022: 20224%12831H -
Cost RAE 4,567 4,236 810 9,613
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (3,024) (1,393) (585) (5,002)
Net carrying amount REFEE 1,543 2,843 225 4611
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MI5E ()

13. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

as follows :

13. RIERIE

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

ENERLEREERREESHNT

Withholding
taxes
FEINR
RMB’000
ANEIEFT
Deferred tax liabilities IFIERIEAE
At 1 January 2022 120221 81H =
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the statement of FRPRIBEENE GA) B
profit or loss during the year (note 9) IEIEFRIE (MI5E9) -
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 11202212531 H &2023F181H S
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FARAREBEm&RITOEN
profit or loss during the year (note 9) RIERIE (MI5E9) 1,265
At 31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H 1,265
Impairment of
financial assets
MEEERE
RMB’000
NEHFT
Deferred tax assets FIETRTBEE E
At 1 January 2022 20221 81H 1,570
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRFFABmKN
during the year (note 9) IRIERIE (MI5E9) 665
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 12022412831 H %2023F181H 2,235
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FREABmKN
during the year (note 9) IRIEFRIA (FI5E9) 961
At 31 December 2023 122023%F12H31H 3,196

REEBEERSERAT

= Sty
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

13. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group
for financial reporting purposes:

BEIEMIA (48)

UFRAERFMBREARNIEL
MIBAEER DA

2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ABREFT AERETT

Deferred tax assets recognised in the REHE B R RERN
consolidated statement of financial position FERIEE E
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RE B R RERN

consolidated statement of financial position EIERRIEA(E

3,196 2,235

(1,265) =

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The applicable rate is 10%
for the Group.

In the opinion of the directors, who have absolute discretion in
determining whether to recommend a declaration of any dividend for
any period, and the amount of dividend to be paid of the Company, the
Group will distribute to Shareholders no less than 25% of distributable
profits after the Listing.

At 31 December 2023, deferred tax of RMB1,265,000 has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland.

Other than the above deferred tax liability in relation to the PRC
withholding income tax provided, no deferred taxation has been
provided for the distributable retained profits of approximately
RMB179,601,000 (2022: RMB143,096,000), which were derived
from the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group did not have any tax losses as at 31 December 2022 and
2023.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2023 Annual Report
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EFTEHNBERERTEZMER
HBEEREARE  URAABRIK
ENRETH-EEZIR A5EHD
RRIKENRERF DR EHEATD
TREF FI25% ©

R2023F 128318 > AEE R E
P 3 A% 32 Y T B A Bl B AN TR N AR Y
FEHERTIMENNFEINRERIEL
I8 A R #51,265,0007T °

br bt B EEINFr S M A HEE
FUIEIERIBEEIN HNAEEAESN
EH R AN RO BERE
RO RN KRR e R g BE)
(R I 4 2 2 B R E M B A B B a)
DIRRE HEFH AR #179,601,0007T
(20224 : AR %143,096,0007T) 5+
IRIBIERR B o
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15.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

INVENTORIES 14. 7§

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBETFT NEBFT
Consumables JHFE SR 224 69

TRADE RECEIVABLES 5. EINE R
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBETFT NEBFT
Trade receivables U E 5 ER RN 129,319 98,336
Impairment HE (12,785) (8,939)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 116,534 89,397

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management service
income. The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit and the credit period is generally between six months to
one year, except for new customers, where payment in advance in
normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management and credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
once a month. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the date of revenue recognition and net of
loss allowance for impairment, is as follows:

BUWEBEZRREIEREYEEER
BRA -xEFRERNEZERE
EREE EEH—RANERE—
FoEFERBEREBRAMR &
5 B D SRR AR 1 U B WK W R
WA EEEG T UEBERIVE
Bz -mHhEEREEHELTAIR
BOUSBREEEFNEERE -E
B BB R R A EE R E 5 8RR
BRREFRER AR FERE
ETEERAR -BREZERMRBTE
Be

BERSHX REBBAESAHAIL
MR EBRREBERNEKE SRR
IREe DT ©

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB 000

AREFT ANEHFT

Within 6 months NMEB R 64,591 58,332
Over 6 months and within 1 year BiENERB—ERN 25,818 23,317
Over 1 year and within 2 years B —FERER 23,040 6,603
Over 2 years and within 3 years BEmEE=FR 3,085 1,145
Total 45 116,534 89,397
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 15. FEEE BER (@)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

BEREZRNBAEGEERED
mr

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ANEBTFT

At beginning of the year F4 8,939 6,279
Impairment losses recognised R ERE 3,846 2,660
At end of the year FR 12,785 8,939

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and service
type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group writes off trade receivables when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulties and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.; when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner, also taking into account legal
advice where appropriate.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

BRSNS ERARBERETRE
i UEtEREEBE BHEX
BEREFELUGEEREINZEREF
DEERINE R BEE BlRER
RAUKRIRBRE) - ZEtERRIEAREK
MEER ERRERNEREEHA
BB EFM BRI R AR AL E R
MIBANGEKRAISEER

ERENEARSHFHIENEREY
SR > B i S IBFERRUREIRT (f)
IRZHEFHERBRACEARE
BF UREERE) » RERRK A
HEWEZRR TREEBERTE
BERER-

D85 AREERERE Z IR
EREFHEERNEERRER

As at 31 December 2023 #2023%F12H31H
Past due
1to 2 2to 3 Over 3

Current years years years Total
4] 1526 2E3F HBiR3E st
Expected credit loss rate BB EEREX 6.23% 15.57% 31.97% 100.00% 9.89%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REEE ARETT) 96,419 27,290 4,535 1,075 129,319
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEEEERE ARETT) 6,010 4,250 1,450 1,075 12,785
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16.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

s ER R MIsE (8)

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 15. FEUWNE S ERFR (48)
As at 31 December 2022 112022128 31H
Past due
bk
1t02 2103 Over 3
Current years years years Total
Y1) 1826 2E3EF HBiB3E st
Expected credit loss rate HREEREX 6.95% 12.55% 25.55% 100.00% 9.09%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) IREAE (ARETT) 87,747 7,551 1,538 1,500 98,336
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEEERE ARETT) 6,098 948 393 1,500 8,939
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the business and customer KANBEZERA AEREBRER
risk portfolio of the Group remained stable and there were no BB GHEFEE BEREEBBIL
significant fluctuations in the historical credit loss incurred. In addition, BEXES LI RIBHAIEME
there is no significant change with regard to economic indicators BT BRI mE KEH -
based on an assessment of forward-looking information. Therefore, Al REEREHAN BHEERS
there is no significant change in the expected credit loss rates BRIWRERED-
throughout the reporting period.
PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 16. FE{IFR - Hfth UK IER

OTHER ASSETS

Hth&EE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEWFT

Payments on behalf of customers to REA A BREHERN
utility suppliers B QL] 35,839 29,732
Other prepayments HMFET ™= 2,397 2,438
Deposits & 9,333 8,708
Advance to staff FERETIZHIE 4,848 4,610
Others Hih 1,346 1,273
Total “aEt 53,763 46,761

Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand. The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past
due amounts. As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the loss allowance
was assessed to be minimal.

BIERTEN R EME W RIE K HAih
BEENETREEAERER FHER
ERERERE - BFER AR B
FEWRIE S R Y <2 Bl & 2 A HA 0 SR 3R
Ko ik I i HA & &H © 020224 522023
F12831H > BERBEHEI G AR

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17. REXRBREEEY
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AERETT

Cash and bank balances RE KMIBITHEER 177,306 44,724
Denominated in: MU EHEEHE -

RMB AR 177,174 44,689
HKD BT 132 35
Total 4Est 177,306 44,724
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, BAARBIEERRBRABEME
under the Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations B BREPEINEEIBKA R
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign E-EERVESERT A£ET
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB BEEHEETINEEBRRITRA
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign RERRAEMEE-

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RTESENESRETEIRFERLUE

deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy AR B IRITERTFERN TR

banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the BENEENEERFNRT - RE

cash and cash equivalents approximated to their fair values. RRESEEYNREEREQAABE
GERS
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18.

19.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

s ER R MIsE (8)

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

18. B EHIRNK

BNEZERRNBREARZEZEE

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRRE W -
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEEFT
Within 3 months =X (EV=h 1,786 1,568
3 to 12 months =E=+Z@A 74 33
12 to 24 months +E+HEA 8 -
Total 48t 1,868 1,601

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled

on 90-day terms.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the carrying amounts of trade

payables approximated to their fair values.

BB ZERRATEE  BEIZIOX
HARE R -

120225 F2023F 128318 > T &
SERMIREEEAE R AEERSE -

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 19. HthEMNHRIE - BT K
ACCRUALS FEst &R
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT NE#FT
Receipts on behalf of community RtEERWERA BREE R
residents for utilities 11,478 11,330
Deposits received BlEE 19,086 16,535
Business tax and surcharges BERKRMINE 6,272 5,667
Payroll and welfare payable FEN TE& M AEF] 6,461 5,432
Others Hth 5,547 3,548
Total “Et 48,844 42,512

Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. The
fair values of other payables at the end of the reporting period
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.

EAMFE R R BIE R R AR B RE
B HMENRIBERREARN AR
BERAEERREERS-

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

RA TR R MIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. S48 E
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBHEFT ANEEFT
Contract liabilities HHEE 51,753 40,118
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance AEBNGHNEBENDETERBUWE
payments received from customers for services yet to be provided. E R AN RIE AT 18 ok Be A48 B AR
The increase in contract liabilities as at 31 December 2023 was mainly 5 oR2023F 12831 HMEHNEER
due to the increase of short-term advances received from customers in Frig s EEZRP N ZERBEREF
relation to the provision of property management services at the end of BRREY XS ERFVEHHR NG
that year. pIEEE
The expected timing of recognition of revenue at the end of each EREHRBRWANTEHREREN
reporting period is as follows: T
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARH#EFT NEMFT
Within 1 year — R 51,753 40,118
21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. g%
2023 2022
20235 20224
Authorised: EE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0008% A ITHKS B TTHKS
HK$0.01 each (i) SRREEOC.01B T ERER() 10,000,000 10,000,000
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBHEFT ANEHEFT
Issued and fully paid: BETRME
517,414,000 (2022: Nil) ordinary shares 517,414,00088 (20224F : ZH3)
ZiE 4,731 S
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21.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

21. &7 (48)

RABIRFEE AT ¢

Number of Share Share
shares in issue capital capital
BRITROHUE fg 7 fg 7
HK$ RMB'000
Er  ARETT
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and 1202281 B1H ~ 20225128318 &

1 January 2023 2023%F181H 1 = =
Capitalization issue (i) BB 8170 379,999,999 3,800,000 3,475
Initial public offering (i) ERNGEE) 126,668,000 1,266,680 1,158
Exercise of the over-allotment option (i) TTIbB R Y 10,746,000 107,460 98
At 31 December 2023 12023%F12H31H 517,414,000 5,174,140 4,731
Notes: Mzt -

)

(i)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 November
2020 with authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided in 38,000,000
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each. On the date of the Company’s
incorporation, one ordinary share was allotted and issued to the initial
subscriber, an independent third party which was transferred to Zhong
An on the same day. On 3 December 2020, Zhong An transferred
one ordinary share to Zhong An Service Holding Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhong An, at nominal consideration. Upon
completion of such share transfer, the Company became wholly owned
by Zhong An Service Holding Limited.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed on 19 April 2022, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000 by the creation of additional
962,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
passed on 21 June 2023, a total of 379,999,999 shares of HK$0.01
each were allotted and issued at par value to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on the date
of passing such resolution in proportion to their then existing respective
shareholdings in the Company, on a pro rata basis, and such shares
were allotted and issued by way of capitalisation of HK$3,800,000
(approximately RMB3,475,000) from the Company‘s capital reserve
account on the Listing Date.

0] AT FR2020FE11B16A R 28
S AL > & E B A 2380,00078
7T 93 #338,000,0000% & IR EI 180.01
BIEWRMD - NARBFHMAILA
o BRVRBEA (—RBIE=FH)
Boes st — RS @R LR EH
BT R L o R2020E1283H ' &
ZHREIRSERULEREEETR
ZHNEEZEWNBRATRARERE
ERBRAT - RHEZETRE &
NEHREREERERATDLZE
b F =

RIEFR2022F4819HBEBNER
REEZ @iBIEER962,000,000/% 8%
3> A BEE R A H380,0007% 7T
1 210,000,0003# 7T ©

(ii) RIBARABKENR2023F68
CIHEBMERRAZR &£
379,999,999 & i%0.0178 T Y AR 1%
EREERERETTIRZREE
EBERRYAATRELMAVR
RORBERETLAAHEERS
BERAABINRERRE MEE
BROER LB HPREK QAT E R
BRI 3,800,000# 7T (M A R &
3,475,0007t) UMERE A XA E K
{70

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

21.

22.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) On 18 August 2023 (“Listing Date”), the Company issued 126,668,000
shares in its initial public offering at the price of HK$1.18 per share. The
proceeds of HK$1,266,680 (equivalent to RMB1,158,000) representing
the par value, were credited to the Company’s share capital. The
remaining proceeds of approximately HK$148,201,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB135,510,000) before listing expenses were credited to
the capital reserve account.

(iv) On 14 August 2023, 10,746,000 over-allotment ordinary shares were
issued at a price of HK$1.18 per share. The proceeds of HK$107,460
(equivalent to approximately RMB98,000) representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share capital. The remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$12,573,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB11,496,000) before listing expenses were credited to the capital
reserve account.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents additional contributions made by the
shareholders of the Company'’s subsidiaries.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group is
required to allocate 10% of its net profit after tax, as determined under
the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus funds until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. Subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the
articles of association of these subsidiaries, the statutory surplus funds
may be used either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase the
share capital of the subsidiaries provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of them. The
reserve cannot be used for purposes other than those for which it is
created and is not distributable as cash dividends.
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21.

22,

g7 (1)
EH0)

@iy  H2023FE88 188 (TEH B »
KATUER11SETHNBERER
ARIEEE126,668,000/% B2 15 © FTi8
181,266,680 (HHER AR
1,158,0007T) EZEET AEXQTE
B& 7S o 87 R 1SR IE49148,201,000
Bt (FHBERH AR®135,510,000
70) ROk EHRS) BEst ABE AR
BIRE o

(iv)  $2023%E8H14H > 10,746,0000%
MBEAELTERERER1I18ET
BIEAS B85 1T o FR8 R IE107,4608 7T
(FRE R4 ARE98,000T) BIZE
Bt ALRRBRA R TATERIEA
#912,573,0008 7t FHERHN AR
11,496,0007%) CGRiNkk LMD B
STABREBRS

f#fE

B E2022F %2023 F12B31HIEEE
AEERBSEREEHNEHER
BERPET o

[N E Y

RAFEHEEELDWEARRERIFL
BIERSMNHE -

RE R

WJFEF' RB)E e i o B AR 17 B9 T R
AEWNEBERRMR) AEBERFH
15'&”)%‘4:'- ETERIEE IR RS
BER10% DI AEE R AESE
EEHBRAREINHIZMERNL50%
b EHRBPEE R RZSMBER
BB REAEETRANR
RT ZERGBABESIAUBBE
B NERHEMER TE’JHXZIK"IE
ARBMBIERAELNESE

BARH25%  ZREFET D BIER :ZE
E’JZ?I\E’JHT’@% B A ERRER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MI5E ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

23. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 23. &f#IRERERMEE

24,

CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

METHFEEERZET

Due to related

companies
FE 1< RAl Btk A B
RMB’000
ANEBTFT
At 1 January 2022 20221 H1H 1,857
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHELENIRERE (1,857)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 12022412831 H K2023F181H -
Cash flows from financing activities METZHEENRERS -
At 31 December 2023 72023%F12831H -
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24. BABARZH
(1) Significant related party transactions (1) EXFABARS
The Group had the following transactions with related parties RNEBPNAFEE ERA NS ET
during the year: TR
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AERETT

Receipt of advances to related
parties
Companies controlled by the

WA ER 1R R Bk 75 2 B AR

RRERABIERZ AT

Ultimate Holding Company - 236
Advances from related parties KERB SRR
Companies controlled by the RIEERABIZEGZRAE)

Ultimate Holding Company - 3,492
Repayment of advances from RERBARAIER

related parties
Companies controlled by the REERAB TS ZAE

Ultimate Holding Company - 5,349

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 24,

(1) Significant related party transactions

RS X 5% (&)
(1) EXEBERZ (@&

(Continued)
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEEFT
Property management service REMBMAMESERBKA
income from related parties
Companies controlled by the REERABESZ
Ultimate Holding Company (i) (iii) 2~ B(i) (iif) 32,784 32,867
Joint ventures of companies controlled R4 IERE A T 6| >
by the Ultimate Holding Company (i) =R=31=() 78 =
Associates of companies controlled REERABESZ
by the Ultimate Holding Company (i) B A E() 36 =
Total 48t 32,898 32,867
Income from value-added services KRB AETERYEFES
mainly to property developers RHIZERFEUA -
from related parties:
Companies controlled by the Ultimate ~ B ARG A T HEHI 2
Holding Company (i) iii) 2~ B(i) (iif) 42,569 47,862
Joint ventures of companies controlled R4 IERE A T HEH| >
by the Ultimate Holding Company (i) R0 () 4,492 3,414
Associates of companies controlled REERABESZ
by the Ultimate Holding Company (i) B A E() 4,994 2,543
Total 48t 52,055 53,819
Community value-added service RERB A EEEREKA
income from related parties
Companies controlled by the REERABESZ
Ultimate Holding Company (i) (iii) 2~ B(i) (iif) 11,467 23,132
Rental expenses HEmX
Companies controlled by the REERABESZ
Ultimate Holding Company (i) ~E() 321 394
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(1) Significant related party transactions

()

(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The prices for the above service fees were determined in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the

contract parties.

(i) The Group has been licensed by the Remaining Zhong An Group
to use its certain trademarks for operations on a non-exclusive,
non-transferable and royalty-free basis for a perpetual term.

(i) The above related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

24. BBt

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

X5 (&)

(1) EXEBERZ (&)

et

(i

(i)

FRRBEBRDRESH
& 75 HREWE 2 R B AR
EE-

FEBHEEFFRZEBRRER
RUFBR - FAIEERR
EREEEXAEBESET
ARFEERR

LRBAEAZZTER LT
MBIE14AE PR R ERIRIER

Outstanding balances with related parties (2) FARk T KEZEEREE
Amounts due from related parties: JE U RE B 5 TR IA -
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT NEETFT
Trade related: B8 -
Companies controlled by the Ultimate ~ RALIZER A B EFIZ A E
Holding Company 50,545 7,139
Associates of companies controlled by — RARIEIZG A TIEGHI 2 BHE A F)
the Ultimate Holding Company 2,849 -
Joint ventures of companies controlled  RARIER AT TSIz &= B
by the Ultimate Holding Company 1,161 3,030
Total s 54,555 10,169
The trade related receivables from related parties arose from the FEWRE S8 53 EEE =18
provision of property management services and value-added KERMBBBEIRERENYES

services to the related parties. The receivables amounting to
RMB10,169,000 and RMB54,555,000 were aged within one
year as at 31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively, based on

the date of revenue recognition.

x

ERBREERS - REBEWA

B
F
A

SRHE > 20228 K2023
128310 EWHRIEBED A5
R #10,169,0007t & A R #&

54,555,0007z * BRESHAMN —F =2

N

ZEBLEERSERAT

o

= Sty
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

25.

(2

(3)

Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)

Trade related amounts due from related parties are with credit
terms of three month. The Group has assessed that the credit
risk of these receivables has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and measured the impairment of trade related
amounts due from related parties under the simplified approach
based on lifetime expected credit losses and has assessed that
the expected credit losses are not significant.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group,
which comprises the remuneration of the directors, is disclosed
in note 7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

24,

25.

RABE 5 ()
(2) FAERTREZEFRE (&)

FE U e Bk 75 BY B 5 AR R RRIR (S
EfR=ER AEEETEZ
FRWRENEERR SV H
BESD S RRE IR AN > W BRI
EHZERBEEMAREERE
sTEREWRE S B 5 HME
BURE > BE ML TREIE SRR
WAREK

O EEMEBEZARH

AEETZERASHFH (2
EEEHH) SRHETRE -
EERB D ERT A

FHEEMTENSREPRNEREE
LI

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Financial assets — financial assets at ERBEEHEHEAA

amortised cost FEEREE
Trade receivables (note 15) FEU B ZERR (15315) 116,534 89,397
Financial assets included in prepayments, SFATENR B R EM

deposits and other receivables EWRIEN &R E E 46,518 39,713
Due from related companies (note 24) FEUS B ESE A Bl 7R IE (MF5E24) 54,555 10,169
Cash and cash equivalents (note 17) RERIREEEBY FEE17) 177,306 44,724
Total 48t 394,913 184,003
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26.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

25.

s ER R MIsE (8)

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

LB ERT A (8)

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBHEFT ANEEFT
Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at TREEREENA S
amortised cost THEE
Trade payables (note 18) e B SRR (I5E18) 1,868 1,601
Financial liabilities included in other payables, 5t A EMtFERTRIE  BEWIZ S &
deposits received and accruals S ERTHNEMEE 36,111 31,413
Total 485t 37,979 33,014

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, amounts due from
related companies, amounts due to related companies, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, and
financial liabilities included in other payables, deposits received and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group did not hold any financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.

26.

THMIANAREERAR

BEERE

EEENGRERIREEEY B
B 2R BT E R FEURRI B
ANERIA BB R B MIE 5T A
TR H A WCGR IR R B At & &
NWERMEE > UKt AHMBELR
SRS REFERTNEZREEN
ARBEERHEKREERS TEHN
ZETAENIEHESR

DRABERE
120225 20236128310 » A% E

WEFAEARAABESENEZR
BERER

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

27.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade payables and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group
has other financial assets and liabilities such as amounts due to
related companies and amounts due from related companies. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit
risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative
strategies on its risk management. To keep the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and
other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below:

(@) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, and amounts due from related
companies included in the consolidated statements of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets as at 31 December 2022 and
2028.The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics, such as instrument types
and credit risk ratings for the purpose of determining significant
increases in credit risk and calculation of impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, all cash and cash
equivalents were deposited in high-credit-quality financial
institutions without significant credit risk. These financial assets
were not yet past due and their credit exposure is classified as
stage 1.
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MERREEEERBE

FERIEZESMIAT2OERER
ReFEY BHREMBERE
B REMBNNIE ZERIEHE
REFEBEE-AEETEEME
MEEREE NEMEBRASNEA
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TEEBNAREEREEEEER-

FERSRMTIAENTIZRRBAEER
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B EREES EREURTREE %
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(a) EEE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

27. BHEAKREEBRREER
(&)

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERAMK (&)
Trade receivables B 5 FEURAR TR

To manage the risk arising from trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made
only to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the Group’s
counterparties. The credit periods granted to the customers
are generally six months to one year and the credit quality of
these customers is assessed, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Group also has
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of trade receivables to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables and trade
related amounts due from related companies. The expected
credit losses also incorporate forward-looking information
based on key economic variables such as inflation rate. The
Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade related
amounts due from related companies is considered to be
low, since the related parties have a strong capacity to meet
contractual cash flow obligation in the near term. As at the end
of the reporting period, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement records
and past experience. The Group has classified financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
in stage 1 because there was no recent history of default.
Management continuously monitors their credit risk. As at 31
December 2022 and 2023, the loss allowance was assessed to
be minimal.

x

RHEEESRWERREENR
B & B E AR RAECR  FE(R
EMABEEELBNXZY
FHRMHEERNR BEEEY
FEBNXSHFHETHE
WEENE - B TFERIEEH
—RRERAEIFE WIREE R
IR SR ~ AR AR B S HoAth [
EHHEEERETIME K&
ERHIEEMEEE RS HERER
WRETHWEERE SRR
RSN REBERESE
7 AR B TTUR Bl 28 - (R
RMEBRTR  AEELERSE
EREERR RREIBRNAE
REHFHIRER-

FEBRRBERMBRESEL
BOERERN BT A RTANR
EEBE ZHERFHBE
5 & W BR 7R e P Wi R B A B Y
B2 EMRAEREHENE
BE# -RHMEEGRETMA
ERNFTBELEEE WEEFER
) NATHEEE R o R RRHE TS
BRAENREHANBTEL
IREIMETS > 2~ 5 [ Ta H 24 R Byt
REENEBEZEBRER RN
EERBRM REREHR B
BB ERTEREM -

TEBTEHRHBMOR HtEK
MEREMEETNSREE
ETERML ) WRRERA
50 8% Ko LAUTE 45 B ¥ H At FE WL R
T8 A9 7T U (O] 14 36 17 B8 48 5 1 o
BT EENRE NEEE
AT HAanEWE B R E At &
EFNESRHEES AFTIME
CEBRHESEZEHEERR -
20225 K 2023%F12831H » k5
BB AR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

27. BHEAKREEBRREER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2022 and 2023. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and
the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

(1)

(@) EERAR (@&

RA BRI O B FARPEER

NEEEERRAEERBK
M HFBEPBEAPER
HEMENAZENTHAKE
BI AL A S 5% D B mT BRSO B k)
BIBRIN » LR 120224 52023
F12HA3 T HWELRBEER D480
FIR3NEeEssREENE
REERMBEREHNEER

B Y R B bl T o
As at 31 December 2023 142023%F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 5 F8 A
EEH1E 2HEREESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FPEE B FREER [k (oW st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBEFT ARBEFT ARBEFT AREFT AREFT
Trade receivables* e & 5 BR 0 - - - 129,319 129,319
Financial assets included EPNENE/ SNl
in prepayments, FEWERIB R E A
other receivables and BENTREE
other assets
— Normal** —EE" 46,518 - - - 46,518
Amounts due from related ~ FEURREER A B FUIE
companies - - - 54,555 54,555
Cash and cash equivalents R&RELEEY
— Not yet past due — R 177,306 - - - 177,306
Total Foy 223,824 - - 183,874 407,698
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

27. MEEAK
(&)

(@ 8

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

BEEBRREER

kR (&)

RA RO KR ELRER (8)

As at 31 December 2022 120225 12831H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12185
FEEE SHREBEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—REE FIREE FE=PEER BIEA* st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ANEBEFT ANEEFT AEBETT AEBEFT AREFT
Trade receivables* ek & 5 Bk = = = 98,336 98,336
Financial assets included s AT Efth
in prepayments, FEWERIB R E A
other receivables and BENTREE
other assets
— Normal** —EE" 39,713 - - - 39,713
Amounts due from related  FEURRBREHA B 7
companies - - - 10,169 10,169
Cash and cash equivalents R&RELEEY
— Not yet past due — R 44,724 - - - 44,724
Total Foy 84,437 - - 108,505 192,942

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified

approach for impairment, information based on the provision

matrix is disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.

Hok

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,

Hox

other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the

financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

REEBEERSERAT

MAEEREEBEEREER
BIEREZEERBEZEIE
ZRMME AR RMBR
RUTE15HE

Bt AR B AU
EREMEENSREET
R ER > T B X R B R RN
TRVEE BB RESRLURE
SEERBREBREEM BHE
EBEERERER TR
TREENEEERRKRER
TRER]

= Sty
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FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 27.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties
in meeting its financial obligations due to shortage of funds.
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding to finance its working capital needs as well
as capital expenditure.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted

MR EEEIERBUER
(1)

(b) RENEE R

RPBETRBREFAERRES
ERMBENBTEMBEHN
Bk AEEERNABES A
REIEREETHEERBER
[REEEC - AEENERERIFE
FERZH 2 BT e

BESHORMROR ~EEBE
MEERBRERERNEAEH

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

payments, is as follows: MR
Less than
3 months or 3to 12 1to 10
on demand months years Total
LiA3(ER
ZEER  3E12(EA 1E105F st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBEFT
31 December 2023 2023%F12A31H
Trade payables e B S8R 1,786 74 8 1,868
Financial liabilities included in ST AHMEN I
other payables, deposits BlEhESTERN
received and accruals SRBE 36,111 - - 36,111
Total et 37,897 74 8 37,979
31 December 2022 2022128311
Trade payables BB Z R 1,568 33 - 1,601
Financial liabilities included in st AEfHEIFHIE
other payables, deposits BlehETERN
received and accruals THBRE 31,413 - - 31,413
Total WEt 32,981 33 - 33,014
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2023
2023%F12831H

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES RS EEEEREE
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (#&)
(c) Capital management (c) EXEIE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirement. No change was made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total
current assets divided by total current liabilities, and a liabilities to
assets ratio, which is total liabilities divided by total assets. The
current ratios and liabilities to assets ratios at the end of each of
the reporting periods are as follows:

AEBEAEENTEENG
EREAEEENHFECSER
MR ESHERLE UFH
EGRERREERAE-

NEBTEBEEEAERE  WRE
RERTOEEMEMEEN

R HHE AR A4S
Wfﬂ*ﬁﬁmn% 7S £E B AT AE R
BL A FREMNRE BB AR
EFRENBITHRD - AEE
5 7B 38 ST T A1 40 30 B 10 B9 A
ER o H F 20234 2022412
B31HIEEE  ~EBEMER
BEARAEENEE BERNERIE
HEREE-

REBLURBER (RENEELR
BFLURESEREBER REES
BEX (BEREKRUEER
) BEEANBER -NERE
HEARNRBLEXRREERR
EERG0F

2023 2022

2023% 20224

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBIEFT NEEFT

Total current assets TRENE E4ERE 402,382 191,120

Total current liabilities pEI=R Rk 135,329 104,766

Total assets BEEMR %E 410,085 198,032

Total liabilities aE48s 135,329 104,766

Current ratio TRENEEE 2.97 1.82

Liabilities to assets ratio BREBELE 0.33 0.53

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28. EEE
As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any B E2023F K%2022FE12H31H » K&
material contingent liabilities. Bl mEREANBEAER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FAFsERRMIsE (B)

31 December 2023
2023FE12831H

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 29. KAFMBRAER
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company BEAERANBINRRERR 2T BENR IR
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: MERIT :
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AERETT

CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and cash equivalent REMIREEEY 132 35
Due from subsidiaries =N E S 138,198 =
Other receivables HhpE U aIa 15 =
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS REBEEHEE 138,345 35
CURRENT LIABILITIES Bt B=RE
Due to subsidiaries FET M B A B R IB (10,436) =
Due to related companies FE 1T BB A Bl FRIA (2,745) (3,925)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEEEE (13,181) (3,925)
NET CURRENT ASSETS /LIABILITIES RENEE ARRHE 125,164 (3,890)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERRBAR

LIABILITIES 125,164 (3,890)
NET ASSETS / LIABILITIES FEE AR 125,164 (3,890)
EQUITY/(DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS) 1 (BERBL)
Equity attributable to owners of BAGHE AELEDS

the parent
Share capital [N 4,731 s
Reserve (note) =GR 120,433 (3,890)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS) i~ (EER4) 125,164 (3,890)
* The amount is less than RMB1,000. * 5/ D AR #1,0007T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MI5E ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 29. EATMBRAK (B)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: izt -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RATEEBRRNT
Capital Retained
reserve earnings Total
BAGHE BERET wmst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETFT ANEBTFT ANEETFT
As at 31 December 2021 and 20215128318 &

1 January 2022 20224E181H = (969) (969)
Loss for the year FREEE - (2,921) (2,921)
As at 31 December 2022 and 12022128331 B &

1 January 2023 2023F181H - (3,890) (3,890)
Loss for the year FREEE - (3,012) (3,012)
Issue of shares upon initial BARARMEERETRE

public offering 143,531 S 143,531
Share issue expenses AP EITRIX (16,196) - (16,196)
As at 31 December 2023 2023%F12831H 127,335 (6,902) 120,433
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 30. {REHAEEIE
No significant events that required additional disclosure or adjustments RERRBBEEERFRIMIES
occurred after the end of the reporting period. ABNERER
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31. HLEMFHRR
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by MBRRON2024F3A2600EEF
the board of directors on 26 March 2024. SHUE N IR E o

REEBLEERSERAE —F_=FFR
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Summary of Financial Information

M E R E

RESULTS E
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023F 20224F 20214 20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®EFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Revenue WA 351,133 319,735 295,694 230,695 180,316
Profit before tax PRIRAIFI 69,315 68,260 56,510 63,193 38,309
Income Tax Fref (19,891) (17,325) (14,720) (16,144) (9,594)
Profit for the year FRNE 49,424 50,935 41,790 47,049 28,715
Total comprehensive income UTREEAKREE:
attributable to:
Owners of the parent ISUNSIEZ 2PN 49,346 50,817 38,991 36,535 20,530
Non-controlling interests FERER 78 118 2,799 10,514 8,185
49,424 50,935 41,790 47,049 28,715
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BEE -SERIFERER
INTERESTS
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023% 20224 20214 20205 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®EFT ARBTR AREFT AREFRT
Total Assets maE 410,085 198,082 140,666 259,505 169,473
Total liabilities EEs= (135,329) (104,766) (98,335) (112,586) (69,603)
Non-controlling interests JEER R (1,847) (1,769) (1,651) (28,835) (18,321)
272,909 91,497 40,680 118,084 81,549
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